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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRE

“The trust and confidence that the
profession and the public place in
us will propel us to move forward to
perform our new roles resolutely”

[ERAMDIBRHHPINEENE OB EER
HMBDmAT - BRRETHETHMH
Hae]

It is my honour and privilege to share with you this annual report, which
highlights the progress and accomplishments of our work in the past year and
unveils the future roadmap of the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council
(AFRC), being the independent regulator of the Accounting profession.

Efficient Process, Effective Outcome

The year 2021-22 continued to be a challenging year under the looming
threat of the COVID-19 pandemic and the consequential uncertain economic
prospect. The challenges for the accounting profession were particularly
daunting as it needed to find ways to mitigate the potential impacts on audit
work resulting from the pandemic and at the same time, deal with the great
resignation that posed further resources constraint on their work. Under such
circumstances, the quality of audit and financial reporting could be easily
compromised at the expense of public interest.

Being vigilant of the potential risks on audit quality arising from the pandemic
situation, the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has remained steadfast in
fulfilling its mission of upholding the quality of financial reporting to ensure
public confidence in corporate reporting. We achieved this by discharging
our functions efficiently and effectively through the actualisation of our motto
“Efficient Process, Effective Outcome.”

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP Chairman
BEAWEL  BEFAET  AFHL TE

AANREEFRZLNZARFR - RERTIERRE
REFMBE—FOTIEERMKR - YRR S
REHERE (SR FREMERBULEEH
BRI

BIZRS 0 RIER

AR MBS R BN BB MBE 2 RS

AT=NBABA R » 2021-22F AR Fe M BB —
o BRI EXEMERMPE LR - ERIAEN

BIEHES TEENBEEEENRK - THER

REERE TR RE— 2B RIRS - FiE

BEST  BANUBERNEEZRESHZIE

2 BEARME= -

BERR (MER) BRBERBAERTRNE
ERBERFEG BEIMBHERMBERE
= BRAREOEERNEDS - RFABBEE
H IR BE G 88 B2 RA0ER ) - SREAE A
HEITHRPIBEE - UERABERD °

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2021-22 « Bf i E R 2021-22F 3R



Visionary strategies

Tone from the top is the key driver for effective management and good
performance. The Board has set visionary strategies for multiple functions
of the FRC, which stretched beyond the statutory duties as set out in the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance. We have also directed Management
to critically review the internal process and procedures so as to ensure that
functions of the FRC could be carried out timely and smoothly. Such reviews
have resulted in enhanced efficiency across our regulatory functions as
reflected in our operations statistics.

While statistics is the scientific expression of our performance, the art of
our regulatory efforts is embedded in the FRC’s culture. The FRC has
cultivated an open and receptive culture that embraces constructive ideas
and recommendations from every level of the organisation structure. With
our well-structured Training, Appraisal and Promotion policies in place, we
have also built a competent and cohesive Management team and staff force
who are capable of executing our corporate strategies to achieve effective
regulatory outcomes.

Proactive stakeholder engagements

Closed-door regulation is a thing of the past. The FRC believes in the
power of communication and education, and takes a proactive approach
in stakeholder engagement. Through constantly communicating with the
accounting and audit profession in the market, we keep them abreast of our
key regulatory messages, findings and recommendations to them, leading to
improvements in practice and fundamental change in mindset and behaviours
(both at individual and firm level). While practice can be short-lived, culture
takes root. It is the ultimate and the most important regulatory outcome that
the FRC aims to achieve. We encourage firms to invest time and efforts in
shaping a culture of high quality audit that is conducive to the sustainable
development of individual auditors, firms and the entire profession in the long
run.

Strengthened connection and collaboration

Where there is a will, there is a way. The social distancing measures and
travel restrictions imposed have not dampened our determination to connect
and collaborate with local, Mainland and international regulators and
regulatory counterparts.

Locally, we have set up Memorandum of Understandings (MoUs) with
various regulators including the Securities and Futures Commission (SFC),
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (SEHK) and the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC). The MoUs set out the framework for
collaboration and information sharing in areas of mutual interests to achieve
the overarching goal of combating market misconducts, safeguarding the
effective functioning of the capital markets and enhancing investor protection.
The initiation of investigation cases of high public interest is the solid proof of
the effectiveness of such collaborations.
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At the national level, the successful implementation of the MoU signed
between the PRC’s Ministry of Finance (MoF) and the FRC has marked a
milestone in our strategic collaboration with the MoF. Given the significant
presence of Mainland enterprises in Hong Kong’s capital markets, the FRC
will ride on this valuable experience to explore further cross-border audit
regulatory collaboration.

At the international level, the FRC has joined the International Organization of
Securities Commissions (IOSCO) as an affiliate member. As the independent
auditor regulator of Hong Kong, it is of paramount importance for the FRC to work
closely with global regulatory partners for the benefit of investors both globally
and locally. Our membership of IOSCO signifies our resolve and determination to
participate, as a key member of the international regulatory community, in cross-
border cooperation and collaboration which is crucial to the financial security and
stability of Hong Kong as an international financial centre.

Understanding the implications of Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG) factors for the sustainable development of listed entities has become
increasingly important to investors and other stakeholders of listed entities.
Reporting about ESG factors has therefore become an important aspect of
financial reporting. We fully intend to play our part in supporting Hong Kong’s
Climate Action Plan 2050 as we strive to enhance the quality of financial
reporting and audits for listed entities and as our remit extends to audit and
assurance more broadly under the further reform. The FRC has therefore
established the Sustainability and Climate Action Task Force (SCATF) to
provide high level recommendations to the FRC Board on strategic actions
that should be considered in relation to the global developments in financial
and sustainability reporting. The SCATF comprises a diverse group of experts
representing a broad range of stakeholders. | am confident that their strategic
insights and advice will support the role of the FRC in further strengthening
Hong Kong as a competitive international financial centre and business hub.

Further reform to align with international practice
One of the most important development for the FRC in the year is the further
reform of the accounting profession. The further reform aligns the Hong Kong
regulatory regime for the accounting profession with the international practice.
[t not only enhances regulatory efficiency and ensures consistency but also
promotes the sustainable development of the accountancy profession. These
are all key elements that contribute to strengthening Hong Kong'’s position as
a competitive international financial centre.

In preparing for the implementation of the further reform, the FRC has been
working at full steam formulating relevant strategies and policies. We have
also conducted a targeted engagement and consultation exercise to facilitate
stakeholders to understand our rationale and solicit their views on how to
ensure our proposed policies meet the expectations of the public through
an effective disciplinary regime. The future AFRC will adopt a proportionality
approach to regulate independently, fairly and transparently. We will also work
closely with the HKSAR Government to promote the long-term development
of the entire accounting profession.
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Under the further reform, we will reintegrate our inspection, investigation and
disciplinary functions relating to listed entity audits with the same functions
for other audits and assurance engagements performed by Hong Kong’s
professional accountants. As we expand our team to address the further
reform, a significant component of our new staff will join us from the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) alongside further
recruitment from the market. We are determined to build ‘One Culture One
Team’ from the moment our new staff begin to join us. Our vision is a culture
in which each member of staff feels empowered to take ownership of their
designated responsibilities and contribute their ideas openly and frankly
regardless of rank; one in which their principal motivation and job satisfaction
comes from their collective and individual achievements in delivering the
FRC’s public interest objectives through the cohesive performance of our
functions.

While we are optimistic about the thriving developments that come along with
the further reform, we need to face the music that resources are limited and
the challenges are big. Yet, at the FRC, we are adept at turning challenges
into opportunities, and limitation to aspiration. The trust and confidence that
the profession and the public place in us will propel us to move forward to
perform our new roles resolutely.

Like what Lao Zi’s says in Chapter four of “The Classic of the Way and
Virtue”, “the Way is to blunt the sharp points, unravel the complications,
attemper the brightness and bring agreement”. Applying this philosophical
wisdom in the regulatory context, the FRC’s Way is to address acute issues,
enhances efficiency and creates a harmonious environment for the profession
to develop and shine.

Gratitude beyond words

| would like to express my deepest gratitude to our Board Members, Honorary
Advisers, Members of the Financial Reporting Review Panel, Members of
the Process Review Panel and Members of the SCATF for their wise counsel
and staunchest support. Their visionary insights and advice have taken
the FRC to a new level, earning increased public recognition. My heartfelt
thanks go to the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau which has been
providing ardent support to us, in particular, on the further reform. Last but
not the least, | convey my special thanks to our Management and staff. They
made their all-out efforts on every single mission given to them. Bearing the
public interest in their mind, they committed themselves to turning mission
impossible into mission possible.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

1T BB R

“We seek to influence and shape
the behaviours of our regulatees
and other stakeholders to drive high
quality financial reporting and audit”

(BB ERBEZEEA LKA
FENTS  LEBSEZNMKBE

In 2021-22, a year of continuing global challenges, we kept a close focus on
our regulatory responsibilities for Hong Kong listed entity financial reporting
and audit, whilst preparing earnestly for the adoption of our new functions in
mid 2022-23.

Listed entity financial reporting and audit quality
The fundamental requirements for listed entity financial reporting and
audit remained unchanged. However, listed entities and their auditors had
to contend with the continuing effects of the pandemic and geopolitical
developments driving economic uncertainty, market volatility and resourcing
challenges. Listed entity auditors also needed to respond to our first annual
inspection findings that the quality of their audits needed to be improved.
They also had to prepare to implement new quality management standards
(“QMS”) in December 2022.

Our budget for the financial year 2021-22 reflected the need for fiscal
discipline in the current economic circumstances. However, we were able to
deploy the full range of our regulatory operations with the same resources as
in 2020-21.

HK =T

Mr Marek Grabowski CEO
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

Our regulatory operations comprise both our statutory functions and non-
statutory activities. Through them, we seek to influence and shape the
behaviours of our regulatees and other stakeholders to drive high quality
financial reporting and audit. We also seek to deter, prevent, detect and
remediate behaviours that result in compromised quality. When met, these
outcomes should enable investors to have full confidence in the quality of
financial reporting and audit of listed entities. This is pivotal in maintaining
investor confidence in Hong Kong's listed markets and Hong Kong's status as
an international financial centre.

Influencing the competence of listed entity auditors
We recognise (license) overseas listed entity auditors and oversee
performance by the HKICPA of registration and the setting of standards and
continuing professional development requirements for listed entity auditors
and registered responsible persons. These powers enable us to influence
the competence of listed entity auditors. In 2021-22, we recommended
enhancements to the performance and governance of the HKICPA functions
and saw our 2020-21 recommendations being implemented.

Monitoring and remediation of financial reporting
and audit quality

We proactively monitor both the quality management systems and selected
audits of listed entity auditors, providing information on market-wide audit
quality. We also proactively monitor the quality of listed entity financial reports
through our financial statement review programme. Such monitoring also
enables detection and timely remediation of financial reporting and audit
quality issues identified.

During 2021-22, we focused on the root cause analysis for the deficiencies
identified in our first Annual Inspection Report (published in June 2021) and
required remediation. We also increased the number of engagements we
inspected with the same resources as in 2020-21. In our second Interim
Inspection Report (published in November 2021), we reported that firms were
already being responsive and proactive in improving their audits.

Prevention through proactive research,

transparency and education

Through inspection, proactive market surveillance and research and
engagement with listed entity auditors, we obtain market-wide intelligence.
For example, our inspection function has monitored the timing and reporting
of changes in listed entity auditors and financial statement reporting delays
during 2021-22. These may indicate risks to financial reporting or audit
quality. Our enquiries and investigations also provide market-wide findings
about non-compliances in financial reports of listed entities and deficiencies in
the quality of their audits.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
ITHARHER S

Such intelligence feeds into our risk assessments but also enables us to
drive prevention through transparency and education about our market-wide
findings. Transparency about the progress, findings and recommendations
of our inspection, investigation and enquiry functions is achieved through
publication of our Annual and Interim Inspection reports and our Annual
Investigation report.

We promoted distribution and endorsement of the findings and
recommendations in our progress reports through and by representative
bodies of key stakeholders. We also engaged with these stakeholders
through presentations and dialogue at webinars and seminars arranged
by these bodies. These educational activities are directed not only at listed
entity auditors and Boards of listed entities but also at listed entity audit
committees, which play a pivotal governance role in overseeing listed entity
financial reporting and audits.

Our Oversight, Policy and Governance Department published, in December
2021, the first in a series of “Guidelines for Effective Audit Committees” on
“Selection, Appointment and Reappointment of Auditors”. Our “Overview of
the Market for Listed Entity Audits in Hong Kong”, published in March 2021,
found that audit fees for listed entities increased at an average annual rate
of only 0.9% from 2010 to 2019. In light of this, the Guideline emphasises
the need to consider both audit quality and fees and that the audit fee level
should not compromise audit quality.

In the last quarter of 2021-22, our inspection function carried out two
proactive research projects. The first was to understand the status of listed
entity auditor preparation for implementation of the new QMS. The second
addressed the resourcing challenges being faced by listed entity auditors in
the context of the fifth wave of the pandemic and high staff turnover rates.
A report of our findings on QMS preparation was sent to all listed entity
auditors. An open letter on the resourcing challenges was sent to the Hong
Kong Association of Registered Public Interest Auditors. Both were published
in March 2022.

Identifying and responding to suspected

misconduct or non-compliance

Our enquiry, investigation and discipline functions enable us to create an
appropriate level of deterrence to future misconduct or non-compliance. We
identify suspected misconduct or non-compliance through our proactive
monitoring and market surveillance. We promote the receipt of complaints
by members of the public, whistleblowing reports and referrals to us by
other regulators. The issues brought to our attention through these channels
has increased significantly in 2021-22 and this, together with the onset of
cases from our first inspection round, increased our investigation caseload
significantly.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

To ensure the protection of the personal identities of whistleblowers and
increase their confidence in the security and secrecy of handling of their
reports, we launched a new whistleblowing policy in December 2021
and created a dedicated webpage and online form for submission of
whistleblowing reports.

We also monitor market reports, which enabled us to identify and respond
promptly to high profile matters during 2021-22 by initiating investigations and
enquiries. We publicly announced the initiation of these cases and explained
the matters being addressed and why they matter to investors. Our purpose
is to protect the interests of shareholders and the investing public so as to
maintain public confidence in our financial markets and independent auditor
regulation.

We have made good progress in handling our increased caseload with the
same level of resources as in 2020-21. We have prioritised the handling of
cases that are high profile or involve Mainland audit working papers we have
received.

Our Discipline function has been building its resources and preparations for
handling cases. It has started working on handover from our Investigation
function of cases that relate to suspected misconduct from 1 October 2019
onwards. Disciplinary sanction for investigations of earlier misconduct are
conducted by the HKICPA but this is subject to measures being introduced
under the transitional arrangements for implementation of the further reform.

Collaboration with other regulators and

enforcement agencies

Collaboration with other local regulators and enforcement agencies and
Mainland and overseas regulators is important to enable us to protect the
public interest in accordance with our regulatory objectives. The relationship
with the Supervision and Evaluation Bureau (SEB) of the PRC Ministry of
Finance is of strategic importance to us given the significance of Mainland
operations to the financial statements and audits of Hong Kong listed entities.

We are in close dialogue with SEB about access to Mainland audit working
papers for purposes of our inspection function and further good progress has
been made in establishing the appropriate conditions for implementation.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
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During 2021-22, we entered into new or updated MoUs with four local
regulatory bodies and enforcement agencies. In November 2021, we
undertook our first joint operation with the ICAC, signifying our determination
to combat misconduct in Hong Kong’s financial markets through collaboration
with other regulatory bodies and enforcement agencies.

We are determined to participate in cross-border collaboration as a key
member of the international regulatory community for the benefit of investors
globally and locally. We are maintaining contact with overseas audit regulators
with a view to exploring MoUs. Our priorities are the jurisdictions of overseas
listed entity auditors. We also joined the International Organisation of
Securities Commissions as an affiliate member in July 2021.

Preparing earnestly for further reform

Since the announcement of the Government’s proposals for the further
reform of the regulatory regime of the accounting profession in June 2021,
we have been preparing earnestly for a smooth transition. The changes in
our functions are broad. All practising Certified Public Accountants (CPAs),
firms of practising CPAs and corporate practices will fall within our remit for
registration and licensing, inspection, investigation and disciplinary sanction.
All CPAs wiill fall within our remit for investigation and disciplinary sanction.

We engaged with our prospective regulatees soon after the announcement
of the further reform and again recently in relation to our proposed policy
statements and outlines of our processes. We engaged with all sections
of our prospective regulatees and the full range of other key stakeholders
including users and preparers of financial statements and other regulators.

As a fair regulator, we will apply the “proportionality” principle and will largely
follow the existing practice of the HKICPA in performing the functions we are
adopting, whilst meeting our new responsibilities to protect the public interest.
Our impartiality will be assured by the independence of our Board and checks
and balances provided by the Board, its Committees and the Process Review
Panel.

We have also been working closely with the HKICPA and the Government in
ensuring that the transitional arrangements being developed are both efficient
and practical and avoid disruption to the accounting profession as far as
possible.
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Efficient Process, Effective Outcome

We have also been leveraging our expertise and resources to design and
implement efficient processes that would enable us to deliver effective
regulatory outcomes and build up and deploy the additional resources
needed swiftly.

Working closely with the HKICPA to understand their existing regulatory
processes and approach and resources deployed in their performance of the
functions we are adopting enabled us to identify areas where synergies could
be achieved and where our role was incremental. Based on this, we estimated
our resource needs and developed an outline plan and resource needs for
three years from 2022-23.

Our budget for 2022-23 was approved by the Financial Secretary on
22 March 2022 and submitted for scrutiny by the Legislative Council Panel
on Financial Affairs on 7 March 2022. Our headcount will be increased by
56 from 59 to 115 in 2022-23. The increase comprises 30 new headcounts
to cope with the continued phasing-in of the listed entity auditor regulatory
regime and 26 new headcounts to commence the build-up of a new
establishment to cope with the new functions being adopted.

Following the closure of our consultation on 4 May 2022, we finalised and
published our feedback statement on 23 June 2022. We are now continuing
to work on the finalization of our operations manuals.

Addressing our expanded resourcing needs

Our most critical resourcing needs, given the initial doubling of our headcount
are recruitment, expanding our office space and securing essential IT
resources.

Our recruitment process is being tackled in three tranches. We were keen
to recruit the HKICPA staff with a track record of performing the functions
we will adopt. We established a direct channel for this recruitment, made
offers to the 24 staff who applied and received acceptances from 22. We are
recruiting the remaining staff at Manager level and above with the assistance
of a recruitment agency and staff below that level directly with the support of
our Human Resources team. All new recruits are planned to be on-boarded
in the first or second quarter of 2022-23.

In February, we signed a new lease for additional premises in the Hopewell
Centre and the fitting out work was completed in May 2022. This allows us
to house all of our staff in the same building and keep all members of each
Department together on a single floor. This will support the integration of our
staff to build a cohesive one team with one culture.
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ITHARHER S

Our most critical IT resource need is to have the capacity to handle our
registration and licensing functions effectively. We are working with the
HKICPA to licence a modified version of their current system to be operational
before commencement day.

Acknowledgements and thanks

Maintaining a focus on our current remit whilst preparing for the new functions
we will adopt under the further reforms has been no small feat and could not
have been achieved without the dedication and commitment of my staff and
management team. | am proud of their accomplishments in what has been
a challenging year and thank each and every one of them for their tireless
efforts.

| would also like to record my deep personal appreciation to the Chairman
and my fellow Board and Committee members for their unerring trust,
unwavering support and wise counsel during the year.

Looking forward

There is no opportunity without challenge. We have a momentous opportunity
and immense trust has been placed in us on behalf of the public to transform
our role to be the independent regulator of the accounting profession in
Hong Kong. | am confident that with the collective support of our staff,
management, Committees and Board we will overcome the remaining
challenges to accomplish a successful transformation.
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Mr Marek Grabowski
Bh%kE
Chief Executive Officer
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
EIBER

Mission {E15

We advocate to uphold the quality of financial reporting of listed entities in Hong Kong so as to enhance
protection for investors, deepen investor confidence in corporate reporting, and to promote Hong Kong as an
international financial centre.

BERBNERES ITERVBEREE - LMNBHREENRE - ReREEHEEERNEL - M
NARE R BERBRE SR A O 2 1AL -

Values #%/0MEE

We are committed to the following core values:

KRB MHF NI EE

Independence and impartiality
We operate independently by performing our
functions fairly, impartially and consistently, free
from interference by the auditing profession and
listed entities, and from political pressure.

Accountability and transparency

As the regulator of the listed entity auditors, we
should be accountable and transparent. We
publish operational statistics, information on
investigations and enquiries, and other reports.
This allows the public and the profession to
understand our operations and facilitates their
understanding on our performance.

Integrity

Given the nature of our work, Board Members
and staff must be of the highest integrity. We
adhere to high ethical standards in conducting
our activities.

Proficiency
We pledge to achieve our missions efficiently,
effectively and professionally.
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Strategic Focus

REEEE,

To build up ‘one culture,
one team’

#y [—3it - —EkK]

To foster a sense of
accomplishment

SRR AR

To re-engineer our
process

BILERF

Efficient Process
BERG

To ensure a smooth
transition for the further
reform

ERE—DUEIEFIERE

Effective Outcome

R

To enhance cohesive
cooperation with local
and Mainland regulators
EA 7R3 I P 3th BE E 1S
hnsEEE

/
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Governance Structure

Z—\jJEI 1:%

Honorary Advisory
Panel

AEFEME

Process Review Panel

EFERZSE

Financial Reporting
Review Panel

B ERR RS

Committees
£E®

Inspection

Committee
ERESE

Investigation
and
Compliance
Committee

AEREE

Oversight,
Policy and

Governance
Committee

ﬁ% BUERR
EREEE

O

Finance and
Corporate
Affairs

Committee

LUE S ETE S
EREEE

O

Compensation
and
Nomination
Committee

it &
REEET

Regulatory
Reform
Committee

EEuE
E5E

Financial
Reporting
Review
Committee
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HisER

THE BOARD
2EER

Board Chairman

ESRERE

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP
BEXHEL REFEE - KFHL

Board Members

EERHE

Mr Roger Best, MH, JP Mr Eugene Fung, SC
BOmELE - RERE > KFEHL IBRERB LA » ERAEM

Mr Marek Grabowski Mr Stephen Hung Ms Miranda Kwok
BhkE REERETE SIS L+
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Board Members

EERAE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HBER

Ms Rosita Lee Mr Stephen Lee
Mz £ TREBLE

Mr Keith Lui Mr Francis Siu
EEAEE BEEREE

Mr Peter Wan Mr Edward Yuen
FEELEE =Sy e

B SERD 2021-224F 3] * Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2021-22

17



18

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HisER

The Board
The Board is the highest governing body of the FRC. Currently, the Board

comprises 12 members including the Chairman, who is non-executive, 10
non-executive directors and 1 executive director.

Profiles of Board Members

Chairman =&

E5RH
EFREUFERBORHE AN - B128K
BUER - BIEER GERAT)  10BFRTEER
1BHITHS -

EERMEHE

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP
(from 2018-12-15; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

EFIEEL  REFES  ATHE
(F52018-12-1578 5 {EHi#§1X2023-09-30/ /%)

Dr Wong is the Chairman of the Financial Reporting Council and a member
of the Operations Review Committee of Independent Commission Against
Corruption.

He is an Executive Director and a Deputy Managing Director of COSCO
SHIPPING Ports Limited. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of three listed companies in Hong Kong.

He was a Non-Executive Director of Securities and Futures Commission
(2012-2018), the Chairman of Investor and Financial Education Council
(2017-2018), the Chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors (2009-
2014), a member of Financial Reporting Council (2015-2018), a convenor-
cum-member of Financial Reporting Review Panel (2013-2016), a member
of Standing Committee on Company Law Reform (2010-2016), a member
of Main Board and GEM Listing Committees of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (2007-2013) and a member of Auditing and Assurance
Standards Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (2006-2008).

Dr Wong holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Andrews
University in Michigan, USA, and a Doctor of Business Administration degree
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Mr Roger Best, MH, JP
(from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

BomELE  REBHE > ATML
(52019-10-01 18 + {FH3#§%2023-09-30/E %)

Mr Best was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and is a former President
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). He has
chaired the HKICPA Financial Reporting Standards Committee and has also
been a member of the International Financial Reporting Standards Advisory
Council.

Mr Eugene Fung, SC
(from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

BOMAELREEY-MERSSFMITNER
AN TEREBGMAGHER » GHEREERM
BREERNZESEF  TEEERPBEREE
AIEMZEEmKE -

BEESE » BRAKER
(FA2018-12-01iE : EH#5742023-09-30/E 7)

Mr Fung is a barrister in private practice. He is experienced in the fields of
commercial law, trusts and probate, tax, property litigation, professional
negligence, and company and insolvency law. He is also a Recorder of the
High Court, the Chairman of the Process Review Panel for the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority, the Chairman of the Process Review
Panel for the Insurance Authority and the Chairman of the Air Transport
Licensing Authority. He was a member of the Law Reform Commission of
Hong Kong from 2012 to 2018.

Mr Marek Grabowski
(from 2020-10-12; current appointment expires on 2023-10-11)

BAER—BRAREERKEM - thEHE
E o ERE  BIBRE - BISE  MEFA - F
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TEMBRTE o 20125 F2018F AR T
EBFEENELZECES -

EhEE
(F12020-10-128 ; {FHAER2023-10-11/E %)

Mr Grabowski is the CEO and an Executive Director of the FRC. Prior to
joining the FRC, he was the Director of Audit Policy of the Financial Reporting
Council of the United Kingdom (UK FRC) for more than 10 years, during which
he led the development and maintenance of the UK standards for auditing,
assurance and professional ethics for auditors and reporting accountants.
From 2014 to 2019 he was also a Board member of the International Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board, which sets the International Standards on
Auditing and Assurance Engagements. Prior to joining the UK FRC in 2010,
he was a Partner of an international accounting firm for 20 years, during
which he performed technical, audit and capital markets transaction reporting
roles in the UK and overseas.
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Mr Stephen Hung
(from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

Mr. Stephen Hung is a Past President of the Law Society of Hong Kong. He is
currently the Chairman of the Law Society’s Legal Education Committee and
Criminal Law and Procedure Committee.

In his own capacity, Mr. Hung serves on the Communications Authority, Law
Reform Commission, Professional Services Advancement Support Scheme
Vetting Committee, Duty Lawyer Service Council, Disciplinary Tribunal of the
Financial Dispute Resolution Centre and the Standing Committee on Judicial
Salaries and Conditions of Service.

Mr. Hung is an Adjunct Professor of Law of the Hong Kong Shue Yan
University and the Law School of Beijing Normal University. He is also a
Visiting Professor of the Faculty of International Law of China University of
Political Science and Law in Beijing, China and a part-time tutor in the Faculty
of Law of University of Hong Kong.

Ms Miranda Kwok
(from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

RREELEE
(FB2018-12-01#8 ; {EHA##22023-09-30/E /")
RRBEEZMER M eR - B - pRERm
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FREMM T EE BB ABEEHE - LREHX
BERBRFBBE - PREBERERBRESRE
BHE  REBRSLREBRAFEXZRAME
SR BSREAD o

SRE 2+
(FA2018-12-01iE : EHI#57742023-09-30/E#)

Ms Kwok has been serving China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited for over 37 years and is the Non-Executive Director of the bank. She is
a member of the Council of City University of Hong Kong, Risk Management
Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, the EFAC
Financial Infrastructure and Market Development Sub-committee, Hong
Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Advisory Board, Air Transport
Licensing Authority as well as the Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries
and Condition of Service. Ms Kwok graduated with an Honorable Bachelor of
Social Sciences Degree in Economics and Management from the University of
Hong Kong in 1984, and graduated with honors from the Graduate School of
Retail Bank Management of the Consumer Bankers Association in the United
States in July 2001.
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Ms Rosita Lee
(from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HBER

Z M 2+
(FB2018-12-01#8 ; {EHA##22023-09-30/E /")

Ms Lee is the Head of Investment Products and Advisory Business of Hang
Seng Bank Limited, a Director and Chief Executive Officer of Hang Seng
Investment Management Limited, a Director and Chief Executive Officer of
Hang Seng Investment Services Limited, a Director of Hang Seng Qianhai
Fund Management Company Limited, and a member of China Committee
of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce. She also serves a number
of public appointments in Hong Kong, including Securities and Futures
Commission and Legal Aid Services Council. Ms Lee is also invited as a
member of Beta Gamma Sigma HKUST Chapter and a member of Hong
Kong Academy of Finance.

Mr Stephen Lee
(from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

ZRTRABEBERTBRATIREEMmMERZE
BEE BEREEEERARZESZRITHE
H - BERERBERARZESHRITHREEH
BAREECEEERARZEZREBEES
PEHEEZEGRE - EBNETSEAR - RE
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EEREEEMRER - TL T EE

Beta Gamma Sigma®& & ﬂj(’\A&%?/aé%mE?
bie&g e

Mr Lee has over 30 years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management at KPMG in London and Hong Kong. He retired from KPMG
in 2011 as Partner-in-Charge of the Risk Consulting practices of KPMG in
respect of Hong Kong, mainland China and the Asia Pacific region, and is
currently serving as an Adjunct Associate Professor at The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and as Immediate Past President of The Institute of Internal
Auditors Hong Kong. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director at
two listed companies.

He is a Fellow Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, and is an Associate Member of The Institute of Directors and The
Institute of Internal Auditors.

Mr Keith Lui
(from 2020-10-01; current appointment expires on 2022-09-30)

ZHEBLE
(FH2019-10-01E ; {THA 7 2023-09-30/ )
R ERBNEENESH TR EHAHES
BB30FEMEET %éﬁu MEEBER - B
2011 F M EFHERIK EE5EREE - 7R
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REZMBgiEeR - tEEMRATNEL
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FEERBRBGMOE LA LA
SEMAENERGE  UREEE2GRANAE
ZEN I EREE R -

BEXEE
(F52020-10-014E © {FEA#5542022-09-30/E %)

Mr Lui was the Executive Director (August 2006 — August 2019) of the
Supervision of Markets Division of the Securities and Futures Commission
(SFC). During his service at the SFC, he was the Chairman of the Investor
Compensation Fund Committee and the Securities Compensation Fund
Committee, and a member of the Advisory Committee, Investment
Committee, and SFC (HKEC Listing) Committee. He was also a member of
the Statutory Risk Management Committee of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited. He had worked for various financial institutions in the US and
Hong Kong in the areas of deposit taking and lending, asset management
and investment banking.
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Mr Francis Siu
(from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

BEEMLE
(FB2019-10-01#8 ; {EHA#E#2023-09-30/E /)

Mr Siu is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Mr Siu graduated from the University of Sheffield UK in 1979. After that he
joined KPMG Manchester, UK and returned to Hong Kong in 1986 and
became a partner of KPMG Hong Kong in 1993. From 2000 to 2002, he was
a senior partner of KPMG Shanghai Office. From 2002 to March 2010, he
was a senior partner of KPMG Beijing Office, and a senior partner of Northern
Region, KPMG China.

He is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong and Singapore.

Mr Peter Wan
(from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

WL AEERHPLENAERABNEHE

SHARNEREA -

MAR1979F I R BIFMASEE - EAIIMAE
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EBEHHT - WM FRBEERE S EHEM
FEFTEBA ° H2000F £2002F HifE] - b E S
BERSHMEEM LESFETEFAEE AR
7% % A2002F E2010F3 S HIR - NEHEE
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b B RTREREE Em A RIFHE N AR
BIFRITES -

FIHELEE
(F12019-10-01iE : EHI#742023-09-30/E #)

Mr Wan is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. He has over 30 years of practising experience and was
a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers before retirement. He has since been
invited to join the Board of Directors of a number of listed companies as
Independent Non-executive Director. He currently serves as the Treasurer
and Council Member of the Hong Kong Metropolitan University and has held
stewardship positions in several NGOs and service organisations.

Mr Edward Yuen
(from 2021-10-01; current appointment expires on 2023-09-30)

FRERBBEHMAE FHASHAIGRE
AEERGECERGE BEEB=1TF  RIKA
ERABCGESHMEBMNEREBA - BER
BEMAZHE ENRARZEER - HEBILIFH
TESR - FRERRBEHERERAERRES
BB o thsh - i@ TR 2 B S SO BUR A A R
B EIA TIE -

BrEEsH o
(F52021-10-014E ¢ {FEA#5542023-09-30/E %)

Mr Yuen has over 30 years of experience in finance and accounting for
various companies, including multinationals, with the last position as the
Area Finance Director of Pepsi-cola International, and Hong Kong listed
companies, with the last position as the CFO of Hsin Chong Construction
Company Ltd.

Mr Yuen is a Certified Public Accountant. He obtained his M.Sc. degree from
the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology and M.B.A. degree from
the University of California, Berkeley.
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Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP
(Appointment from 2014-12-01 to 2021-09-30)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HBER

BERREE  HEFEE > KFHL
(fEHAH2014-12-01 £ 2 2021-09-30/& /)

Mr Wong was a Non-Executive Director of the Securities and Futures
Commission (2009-2015) and a member of the Listing Committee of the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(1999-2003). He was an audit partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong
Kong before his retirement in June 2005. He has served/is serving as an
independent Non-Executive Director of several companies listed in Hong
Kong. Mr Wong has also served on advisory committees and statutory bodies
established by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, boards of charities and councils of universities.

Dr Lin Yong, JP
(Appointment from 2019-10-01 to 2021-09-30)

mAHE B AEAFMNEEREREZE G 7 IFNTT
EE (2009F £2015F) K EBH AR ZHERA
AIEIER EZ 8 €A 8 (1999-2003) « bR EE
BROBOKESFTMEBAMNETERA TR
2005F6 ARIK - b B A, TR AR ETARE
B IETTES - thIRBRZEEBRRIITHR
REN 2 BAREERE  FRFRECEER
REBHERBHRES o

MOBEEL  KFEHTL
((E£E3FR2019-10-01#E 2 2021-09-30/ )

Dr. LIN Yong is a senior executive of Haitong Securities (Stock Code:
600837SH, 6837HK), CEO of Haitong International Holdings, Deputy
Chairman and CEO at Haitong International Securities Group (Stock Code:
0665HK) and Chairman of Haitong Bank, S.A. He is also the Deputy Director
of the International Cooperation Strategy Committee of Securities Association
of China, member of Mainland Opportunities Committee of Financial Services
Development Council, Chairman of Chinese Securities Association of Hong
Kong, founding Deputy Chairman of Chinese Financial Association of Hong
Kong, and member of Hong Kong Academy of Finance.

Ms Florence Wong
(Appointment from 2019-12-06; resigned on 2022-02-18)

METRAEBEES (RMHAKE : 600837SH -
6837. HK) @R BN E @ BBRFIERITEHR
o BEBEEESFEE RO - 0665HK) &)
[EFRITBBEA RS BIRITER - MIBL B RIJF
ATEEHFEGSERBBEESRET - 58
SREERBNMMEB/NENKE BEPETEE
eegk BETEsRBEAlER TR REE

FEELZL
(fEH3FR2019-12-06#E : 72022-02-18F&¢T)

Ms Wong was an Executive Director, Deputy CEO and Head of Oversight,
Policy and Governance of the FRC. She is a former member of the Financial
Reporting Standards Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA). Prior to joining the FRC, Ms Wong worked in the
HKICPA and an international accounting firm. She is qualified as a certified
public accountant and a certified internal auditor.

IRLERMBERBRITES - BITTHAE KR
EE - BERKERHLIE MEHESAMAE
MM ERNEZBEGOREKE - EMAMKE
BRZH > FRETBETESIHMASN—KE
REETED R AT LI o sb R BEEM & 5B A
NEZ BB ER -
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Membership and attendance at Board meetings during the 12-month

B ZE2022F3A31AW12@ A I » EERER

period ended 31 March 2022 were as follows: HERBRHERNT :

Meetings attended/held

BREHE BITRE

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (Chairman) BERGEL - REFEE - Ko+ (FE) 7/7
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP BOMEAE L - REFE - KTt 8/8
Mr Marek Grabowski (CEO) B AE (TTERERED) 8/8
Mr Eugene Fung, SC FSRERB ST + BIRAEAD 8/8
Mr Stephen Hung RRB(E5TE 77
Mr Stephen Lee THEBELE 8/8
Dr Lin Yong, JP' WEEL - K Famt 4/5
Mr Keith Lui B L 8/8
Ms Miranda Kwok SIS L+ 8/8
Ms Rosita Lee 2 £z + 7/8
Mr Francis Siu EE P 8/8
Mr Peter Wan FIRESTE 77
Ms Florence Wong? FER2+2 7/7
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP? EMREE  EFEE - KP4 3/4
Mr Edward Yuen* BrEE, 5t A 3/3
The average attendance rate at meeting was 96%. ZHEFHHFEEEREIBY
i Retired on 30 September 2021 ! 20219 A30H R
2 Resigned with effect from 18 February 2022 2 20222 18 B EHE
8 Term expired on 30 September 2021 8 EEIRR 202149 A30 A fE i
4 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2021 ¢ 202110 A1 BEE(E
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Committees

Six committees are set up to advise the Board on different affairs of the FRC.
Each committee comprises Board Members and Honorary Advisers with a
wide spectrum of expertise.

Inspection Committee
The Inspection Committee advises the Board on matters concerning the

inspection function.

Terms of reference

To provide advice on the inspection manual (which would cover areas
such as inspection strategy, the inspection process, guidelines for
grading the performance of a firm in an inspection).

To provide advice on the proposed annual inspection plan to be
approved by the Board.

To provide advice, as requested by the Department of Inspection, on
inspection findings, grading or follow-up action in individual cases.

To provide advice on the extent of publication of inspection findings on
individual firms (e.g. to the audit committee of the related listed entity, or
to the public), and the contents of any such publication.

To provide advice on the interim and annual inspection activity reports
of the FRC to be approved by the Board.

To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural) of
the performance of the inspection function by selecting a sample of
completed inspections.

To provide advice on matters in relation to the inspection function as
requested by the Board from time to time.
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Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the

12-month period ended 31 March 2022 were as follows: HERBRHERNT :

BZE2022F3A31AW12E A M ZE2EEH

Meetings attended/held

BREHE BITRE
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP (Chairman) BOMEEE - REBE - AP (EE) 6/6
Ms Rosita Lee (Vice Chairman) WMLt (5EE) 5/6
Mr Eugene Fung, SC FSEERBSTAE  BIRAKERAD 6/6
Ms Grace Hui AR 2t 5/6
Mr Keith Lui BN E 6/6
Mr Francis Siu REREE 6/6
Mr Peter Wan FIRE L 6/6
Mr Stephen Wong FEXSE 6/6
Mr Edward Yuen' BrEEs e A 4/4
Ms Ivy Cheung’ SRR 4/4
Mr Wiliam Mak' BFREAE 3/4
Mr Clement Chan, MH, JP? PREpEC S - BRBBIE - KT A2 2/2
Mr Benjamin Rhys? A 2/2
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP? EMREE  EFEE - K42 2/2
Prof Wayne Yu? BRI HIE? 2/2

The average attendance rate at meeting was 96%.

! Appointed with effect from 1 October 2021
2 Term expired on 30 September 2021

SR TFHHFEERI% °

! MR2021F10 A1 BEZRT
2 EEIR 20214930 fE)m
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Investigation and Compliance Committee
The Investigation and Compliance Committee advises the Board on matters
concerning the investigation and enquiry functions.

Terms of reference

To provide advice and guidance on the development of policies,
strategies, guidelines and procedures for the operation of the
investigation and enquiry functions.

To provide advice in setting selection criteria, including areas of focus,
for the financial statements review programme annually.

To provide advice on technical matters relating to accounting, auditing
and professional ethics as identified by staff.

To receive operation reports of the Investigation and Compliance
Department, oversee the progress of enquiries, investigations,
complaints and financial statements reviews and provide
recommendation on operational matters.

To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural review)
of the performance of the complaint and review handling function by
selecting sample completed cases of complaints and reviews which are
closed without further action.

To provide advice on matters in relation to the investigation and enquiry
functions as requested by the Board from time to time.
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Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the & 202253831812 HRE  E82223

12-month period ended 31 March 2022 were as follows: HERBRHERNT :
Meetings attended/held
EEREEBTRE
Mr Peter Wan (Chairman) (from 1 October 2021) FEREELE (FE) (B2021F10 A1 B 8)

(Vice Chairman) (up to 30 September 2021) (BI£/E) (2202159308 1H) 5/6
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP' (Chairman) ERREE - EKFEE - AV (EE)

(up to 30 September 2021) (Z£2021F9A308 1) 3/3
Mr Stephen Lee (Vice Chairman) PRB A (F/E/E) (20215610518 8)

(from 1 October 2021) 6/6
Mr Chew Fook Aun' AR E 2/3
Mr Eugene Fung, SC IBEEIE A - BIRAER 4/6
Ms Ashley Khoo! i-cy g 3/3
Ms Wincey Lam'’ MEEELZ T 3/3
Dr Lin Yong, JP? WRIEL - K42 3/3
Mr Anthony Leung BN 5/6
Mr Eric Tong?® EEREAES 3/3
Mr Stephen Weatherseed? BARILAES 2/3
Mr Edward Yuen? BrEE, 5t A 3/3
The average attendance rate was 89%. @HFHHEERA89% o
! Term expired on 30 September 2021 1 FERR 20219 A30H B
2 Retired on 30 September 2021 2 Ro0214E9 A30H BT
8 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2021 3 R2021E10 1 BER(T
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Oversight, Policy and Governance Committee

The Oversight, Policy and Governance Committee advises the Board on
matters concerning the FRC’s oversight of the HKICPA'’s performance of
specified functions and matters concerning policy research and guidance on
governance issues for stakeholders and beneficiaries concerned with the aim
of enhancing the quality of audit and financial reporting.

Terms of reference

To advise the Board on the annual plan of the Department of Oversight,
Policy and Governance and oversee the performance of executives to
ensure effective implementation of the approved annual plan.

To consider and comment upon the report on oversight of HKICPA's
performance of specified functions (i.e. registration, setting of standards
for ethics and auditing and assurance practices, and setting of
requirements for continuing professional development in relation to
PIE auditors), including recommendations to HKICPA on performance
of specified functions, and advise the Board on the exercise of the
power to issue directions to HKICPA under section 10(1A)(c) of the FRC
Ordinance.

To provide strategic input and perspective on the current, emerging
and potential issues affecting the quality of financial reporting, audit and
corporate governance for identification and prioritization of research
proposals and other initiatives for promoting the quality of the above
matters.

To consider and advise on research proposals and other initiatives
being undertaken that are conducive to enhancing the quality of
financial reporting, audit and corporate governance and any resultant
publications and thought leadership projects.

To perform any other functions as shall be determined by the Board
from time to time.
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Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the & 202253831812 HRE  E82223

12-month period ended 31 March 2022 were as follows: HERBRHERNT :
Meetings attended/held
EEREEBTRE
Ms Rosita Lee (Chairman) Bk e ) 4/4
Mr Stephen Lee (Vice-Chairman) THELE (BIFE) 4/4
Ms Melissa Brown' Melissa Brownzz £* 1/3
Mr Michael Cheng 2 B =15 e 2 1/2
Mr Stephen Hung RRB(EEE 4/4
Mr Keith Lui B E 4/4
Mr Francis Siu EHEG: S 4/4
Mr Paul Smith Paul Smith%c 4 3/4
Ms Nancy Tse, JP WA/ L KFEt 4/4
Ms Florence Wong?® FHEELZ LS 3/3
Mr Jackson Woo FARER S 3/4
Prof Wayne Yu* B I HIR 1/2
The average attendance rate was 82%. SHEHHEERE82% o
Resigned on 21 November 2021 A20214F11 21 HEHE
Term expired on 30 September 2021 FHIR 202149 H30H B

Resigned on 18 February 2022
Appointed with effect from 1 October 2021

72022F2 A18 H BT
202110 A1 HEER T

ENE A S
ENEE SR
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Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee

The Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee advises the Board on finance,
budgeting, corporate communications, administration and other corporate
matters of the FRC.

Terms of reference

To advise, review and make recommendations on the development of
policies and procedures relating to Finance, Administration, Information
Technology and Corporate Communications matters.

To review policies and procedures to ensure effective financial and
internal controls.

To review annual financial statements and audit findings, and oversee
the implementation of the audit recommendations.

To review and make recommendations to the Board on the draft
annual budget and forecast, including review and monitor the actual

performance against budget.

To advise, review and make recommendations on treasury management
and related performance.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the financial
sustainability of the FRC, including the levels of levy and various fees.

To advise on matters in relation to capital expenditure.

To make recommendations to the Board on the award of the tender for
procurement.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the Information
Technology strategic plans and oversee the execution of the plans.

To formulate strategies on external communications and promotion of
public awareness of the FRC.

To exercise an oversight on the effective implementation of the
communications and public promotion strategies.

To consider and review FRC’s Investment Policy annually for Board’s
approval.

To consider any matters as requested by the Board from time to time.
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Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the & 202253831812 HRE  E82223

12-month period ended 31 March 2022 were as follows: HERBRHERNT :

Meetings attended/held

BREHE BITRE

Ms Miranda Kwok (Chairman) SIS L+ (F/E) 4/4
Mr Francis Siu (Vice-Chairman) FRIEREE (BIF/E) 4/4
Dr Eva Chan PREGEERE L 4/4
Dr Mike Chen' PRARGE L 2/2
Mr Marek Grabowski B[H%E 4/4
Mr Stephen Hung ARB(ESEE 3/4
Ms Wincey Lam? BRI L2 3/4
Mr Keith Pogson Bl E 4/4
Mr Richard Tsang ZEAVE-S 4/4
Dr Lin Yong, JP? MORIEL - KFarLs 2/2
Mr Edward Yuen* B S e A4 2/2
The average attendance rate was 95%. R TIERERIB
1 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2021 ! R2021F10 A1 BEER(T
2 Retired on 27 June 2021 2 EEIR2021F6 A27 HER
e Retired on 30 September 2021 8 TEIRA 202149 A30A JEim
4 Appointed with effect from 26 November 2021 ¢ 72021411 A26 B EZ (T
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Compensation and Nomination Committee

The Compensation and Nomination Committee advises the Board on
all human resources related matters and nominations to be made or
recommended by the FRC.

Terms of reference

To advise, review and make recommendations on human resources
policies, procedures and related issues.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the terms and
conditions of employment for staff, including the structure and level of
staff remuneration.

To advise, review and make recommendations on remuneration
packages to ensure competitiveness with the market.

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration and
reappointment (if applicable) of management staff (CEO, Executive
Directors, Heads of Department and General Counsel).

To nominate members for committees or panels set up by the Board
and make recommendations of members for panels set up by the

Government that are relevant for the FRC.

To consider any matters as requested by the Board from time to time.

Membership and attendance at the committee meetings during the
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12-month period ended 31 March 2022 were as follows: HEREREERNMT :
Meetings attended/held
EEEEBTRE
Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (Chairman) H5REETLT  REFEE - K@+ (FE) 2/2
Ms Miranda Kwok (Vice-chairman) OITS 2L (BIEE) 2/2
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP BOMEEE - RBEE - KT 2/2
Mr Marek Grabowski BhEE 2/2
Mr Francis Mok RBRBESE 2/2
Mr David Stannard HERE A 2/2
Ms Janet Li" FFREL 1/1
The average attendance rate was 100%. @ T R H100% o

1

Appointed with effect from 1 October 2021

1

202110 A1 BEER T
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HEER
Regulatory Reform Committee EENEERES

The Regulatory Reform Committee was established in April 2021 as an ad EENELZ B E@MR2021F4 85K EAEE L
hoc committee to advise the Board on matters relating to the further reform E&@mestHZEMNE— SR E((E—FHNEDE

of the accounting profession (the “further reform”). ANEERESRRERER -
Terms of reference S E
e To advise the Board on matters related to the further reform. o FE—SUNFHBEENEZHREEER -

e To receive timely updates and consider progress reports from FRC staff o  @EIFWIINE BT KERBEE T GHEE—F
on the progress of the further reform. WEERNSNER MEERE -

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the #Z2022F3A31AMW12EAHE  ZE2SS

12-month period ended 31 March 2022 were as follows: HEKRERBEERNT :
Meetings attended/held
BRUEBTRE
Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (Chairman) wEAGIEL  RERAEE - KFHLT(FE) 5/5
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP FOMBSE - REYE - KT T 4/5
Mr Eugene Fung, SC IBREIE A - BIRAER 5/5
Mr Marek Grabowski Bhks 5/5
Mr Stephen Hung RRIB(E5EE 5/5
Mr Keith Lui BN EE 5/5
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP! EMREE  EFEE - KFat 2/2
The average attendance rate was 97%. ST R A97% o
1 Term expired on 30 September 2021 1 {EHAR2021F9 A30H Eim

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2021-22 « Bf i E R 2021-22F 3R



Organisation Structure
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The Board
The Board oversees the Management to discharge the functions of the FRC
efficiently and effectively to serve public interest.

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), appointed by the Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR), leads the staff to manage
the operations of the FRC to ensure that the organisation’s functions are
performed effectively.

Departments
The operations of the FRC are carried out by different departments with clear
segregation of responsibilities.

Department of Investigation and Compliance

The Department of Investigation and Compliance is responsible for carrying
out the investigation and enquiry functions of the FRC. It may initiate an
investigation and/or enquiry based on complaints from the public, referrals
from other regulators, the FRC’s own financial statements review programme
or internal referrals arising from inspections of PIE auditors.

Department of Discipline

The Department of Discipline is responsible for carrying out the disciplinary
function of the FRC. It will take firm and appropriate action in cases of
misconduct by applying commensurate sanctions for the purposes of
deterrence, investor protection, maintaining market confidence in the audit
quality of listed entities and upholding the standards of conduct among PIE
auditors and registered responsible persons.

Department of Inspection

The Department of Inspection is responsible for carrying out inspections
with the objectives of monitoring and promoting audit quality. An inspection
focuses on how a PIE auditor conducted PIE engagements and on the
effectiveness of the PIE auditor’s quality control system to determine whether
the applicable professional standards and legal and regulatory requirements
have been complied with.

Department of Oversight, Policy and Governance

The Department of Oversight, Policy and Governance is responsible for
overseeing the performance of the HKICPA in respect of their functions of
registration, setting of standards for ethics and auditing and assurance, and
setting of requirements for continuing professional development in relation
to PIE auditors, and for recognising non-Hong Kong auditors who intend to
undertake and/or carry out any PIE engagement for overseas entities. The
Department will also conduct policy research that is conducive to enhancing
the quality of financial reporting and audit quality, and publish guidance on
governance and other issues where appropriate.
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Legal Department

The Legal Department is responsible for providing legal advice to the Board
on all matters concerning the FRC and for providing all departments with vital
legal support to the successful delivery of departmental initiatives and the
strategic development of the organisation as a whole.

Department of Finance and Administration

The Department of Finance and Administration is responsible for managing
matters in relation to finance, budget, human resources, corporate
communication and general administration of the FRC.

Practice of Corporate Governance

Internal Controls

The FRC maintains an effective internal control system that includes a
clear organisational structure, well-defined levels of authority, and proper
segregation of duties. The FRC assigns a director to take charge of each
case from the moment investigations/enquiries commence.

The FRC regularly reviews all its policies and guidelines relating to personnel
administration, procurement, authorisation of transactions, and the
safeguarding of its assets.

Specific forms were completed by Board members, committee members
and staff in respect of each case to ensure conflicts had been declared and
identified. Once declared, all papers issued reflect any such conflicts.

Code of Conduct

Code of Conduct for Board Members
The FRC has developed a Code of Conduct for Board Members. All Board
Members are required to adhere to the code of conduct.

This Code of Conduct sets out the basic standard of conduct expected of all
Board Members and the FRC’s policy on matters such as the acceptance of
advantages, declarations of conflicts of interest, confidentiality of information,
misuse of information and use of public funds by Board Members in
connection with their official duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HisER

Code of Conduct for Staff Members
The FRC has developed a Code of Conduct for Staff Members, in line with
the Code of Conduct for Board Members and the latest ICAC sample codes,
and explains relevant matters in greater detail, in particular in relation to
acceptance of advantages by staff members.

FRC staff members are required to adhere to our code of conduct when
carrying out any role on behalf of the FRC. Our code of conduct specifies
standards to be followed in areas that may involve conflicts of interest,
confidentiality of information, personal investments and data protection. This
includes the need for staff members to make regular declarations of their own
and their spouses’ investments in listed securities, and to notify any changes
in their portfolio.

Communications with Stakeholders
The FRC proactively communicates with stakeholders, the accounting and
auditing profession, its regulatory counterparts, and members of the public.

We publish periodic regulatory reports, guidelines, market research, press
releases and e-news to keep them informed of key regulatory issues, up-
to-date findings, the progress of our work and our latest developments.
Operations statistics in relation to our investigations and enquiries are posted
on the FRC website (www.frc.org.hk).

We also fostered close collaboration with various professional bodies through
organising briefings and webinars and sharing our latest publications and
news.

The FRC has also set up pages on certain social media channels to enable
interested parties to connect with the FRC in a more interactive manner.

Accountability and Audit

The FRC is subject to a strict audit process. The FRC’s annual budget
must be endorsed by the Board. The Financial Secretary then reviews and
approves the FRC’s annual estimates of income and expenditure.

The financial statements of the FRC are audited by the Government’s Director
of Audit; annual reports are submitted to the Financial Secretary and tabled at
the Legislative Council. The FRC attends a meeting of the Legislative Council
Panel on Financial Affairs to present the annual budget.
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Process Review Panel (PRP)

The FRC has its work scrutinised by a PRP, the aim of which is to ensure that
individual cases have been dealt with consistently, and that all actions and
decisions taken are in line with internal procedures and guidelines. The PRP
issues an annual report containing the conclusions of its review, together with
suggestions for improvements, if any. Appointments to the PRP are approved
by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR.

Ombudsman
The FRC is subject to indirect oversight by the Office of the Ombudsman
which has statutory powers to investigate alleged acts of maladministration.
The FRC did not receive any enquiries from the Ombudsman during the
reporting period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
. EEREFORE

—
—
y/ Highlights BE

Key figures for 2021-22 2021 F £2022F X BB
/

listed entity auditor firms narrow-focus inspections
1 7 inspected !‘ completed
BERITR T ER TRARFE ISR
Inspection EREIES

R

50 listed entity audit
engagements inspected

EBER60fE LhEREHE

1 0 1 % pursuable complaints and referrals received 8 investigations completed
BRI 01 R A I] BRAE IR 881 TERKSIE & EZ

75 financial statements selected

under the Financial Statements s
P —— 1 4 enquiries initiated . _
e o ER14ESHER Investigation
BRI SRR FE AT d :
TR R el
S BEREMR

32 investigations initiated 1 enquiry completed
R EEEENEES SR EE A EZR

* Excluded 163 pursuable complaints of a vexatious, abusive or unreasonably persistent nature which were not taken further.
TEIE163FR A RAERR B RAGE — F1TEINIRG - B SRFLERERE - BrOEMRZF RAE TR ER -

1 s Guidelines for Effective Audit 86 new and renewal applications
Committees published for recognition of their overseas
Oversight, FlE1pEStEES auditors completed
Policy and BRGEIEES %W;?;E%;ﬁ?ﬁg?iﬁ%%mﬁ
N ¢ § é%]\ 5]

Governance 2 d assessment of the HKICPA's B

Bl BRR “ performance of the specified 5 articles published for

%ﬁl:'l‘ functions completed promotion of financial literacy
FEREREBBETRAE FEEsR X B HE D R A

TR PABBE RO TG

55 staff members as at 31 sgg total expenditure in the 12
March 2022 months ended 31 March
5558 T million 2022
(202243 H31H) =] E #I (B FE202243A318 Corporate
1E121E A) s
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
BN EFERE

The following tables highlights our work during 2021-22. More details are T~ &REFIFEFI2021-22F BB TERZE - &
provided in subsequent sections. ZH BN EBEERE -

Published our first Annual Inspection Report in June 2021, which included audit quality ratings for
the listed entity audit engagements inspected in 2020, the key drivers of those ratings, common
deficiencies identified in the audit firms’ systems of quality control and how we are responding to
those findings and ratings.

Issued our second Interim Inspection Report in November 2021, which provided timely information
and insights on common deficiencies identified during our 2021 inspections in respect of both listed
entity audit engagements and firm-wide systems of quality control we inspected. This enabled
auditors and audit committees of listed entities to take early action ahead of the next cycle of
audits. The report also included the actions we have taken in respect of inspections completed in
2020 and the potential areas of our inspection in 2022.

1202166 B FIB FEERFE - SiFEH2020F M EEEAERERNBAEZTIHR - 25
SAAMEBRE - SMTERZESN RGP ARINE RRE - A RBRFIEEZ SRR RN E
BH e

R2021F 11 BEMBE_HPHERFE - BRMR2021FRER FHEEETBE LgsthirTE
GBI R EBAE DR REREEMR RS - Sl LM ERRHM BT ZESE T —
SREEATAT X PEERTTE) » S NI B FIH20204F SEA B 2R ATERER Y 1T 8) M B FIRR 2022 F 5 52
HBIELEN ©

Published the results of our survey with respect to the implementation progress of listed entity
auditors for the new and revised quality management standards in March 2022.

R20224F3 A TR F M4 E M BB S imE BT ERE R ERIBRERNREER -
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

EENREFER

Investigation and enquiry SAZE K Z

Policy
2§

Operation

EE

Report

-3
=

Cross-boundary
cooperation

BRaE

Developed a whistleblowing policy to encourage whistleblowers to report wrongdoing or
misconduct in an area we regulate.

HIERBHE BB BARRMEERIOBEARKETRIELER -

Conducted the first joint operation with the ICAC on suspected misconduct and bribery involving a
search of the offices of the public interest entity (PIE) auditor.

Completed two investigations with the assistance of the Supervision and Evaluation Bureau (SEB)
of the PRC Ministry of Finance (MOF) which involved obtaining relevant audit working papers
located in the Mainland.

HRRAZMARAE RERTARAEAMETE  BESEARNEBZEANNNRAE o
1ErF BB B EB ES B R THE B RV B B) TS F A MRS TIEETR - TAMIBAS -

Issued the first Annual Investigation and Compliance Report which provided information on
observations and findings arising from our investigation and enquiry work.

BMENFEATRE  EPHARMATNERTEMSNBRRERER -

Made five more requests for assistance to the SEB to obtain the audit working papers located in
the Mainland.

MEENERRLRIERBFER - UREFRAMANET THEER -
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
BN EFERE

Oversight, Policy and Governance &8 - REREA

Oversight Completed our second assessment of the HKICPA’s performance of the specified functions, to
EB ensure the HKICPA effectively discharges its relevant statutory duties. Our assessment report was
published on 16 December 2021 outlining our findings and recommendations.

FEREZREBB ST ASEITIRABRENTE - UWEREESTIASARNETHEREE
HBiBE - 7202112 H16 B B R AT A E A T HMIaEE R Mgz -
Recognition Evaluated and approved 36 new and 50 renewal applications for recognition of overseas auditors.
2] Operational procedures were streamlined and application forms were enhanced to expedite the

processing of applications.

AT R AL 3618 3 AT R IMZ BREM AO ¥ B 56 B0 AE HA R 7 - IBRNEIEIZ fFF RIB(L RRERAE - AN

RERIE IR ST ©
Policy and Published “Guidelines for Effective Audit Committees — Selection, Appointment and Reappointment
Governance of Auditors” on 16 December 2021 to provide specific and practical guidelines for audit committees
BMEREAR to establish a robust process for selecting, appointing and reappointing auditors, a pivotal step

in achieving audit quality. Two briefing sessions were hosted with professional bodies to promote
active adoption of the Guidelines, with the participation by over 100 company directors, audit
committee members and senior executives.

Published five articles in collaboration with the Investor and Financial Education Council to promote
financial literacy among retail investors and the general public.

R2021F12 16 B M (BT E LA MEIEES| —TE - ZEREHEZMTZEA) - AETEE
SIRHAEMEANES - UEYEENEE  ZCMEFTROZXEBERERF - AERSEEET
BHEBZ—H - HEXWERTTMISHRE - HHEBEMIED] - KEHBBI00ZARES « T
ATEEBENENRREEABR -

BEEEREVHERZEGAERRARBNE - NEE - RREELELBEATRNS R

Corporate ##i§

Talent Completed a mid-year performance appraisal in October 2021 and a final performance appraisal
development in March 2022 for all permanent staff with a view of identifying training needs to enhance their core
ATES competencies and overall performance.

F20214F10 A Jepk B T F E A AT h RN 20224F 3 A SE B RSB ATl - IABRIEIIRE - 12
BETIHRLET I NEERE

Corporate Published 4 issues of our e-news bulletins and 38 press releases. Posted monthly operations
Communications statistics about complaints, investigations and enquiries on our website.
B

nE

BEMAMEF A KSR E AR - R LA ARKR - AEREANEAEFEREE
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EENEFERR

Introduction

This review covers the period of 12 months from 1 April 2021 to 31 March
2022 (review period). It addresses the development and performance of our
operating and corporate functions during the review period.

Inspection is a key part of our market monitoring activities, which addresses
audit quality. Through our monitoring activities, we aim to educate the market
on our financial reporting and audit quality expectations, monitor the quality
delivered by listed entities and their auditors against those expectations, and
provide market feedback based on quality deficiencies we identify to drive
quality maintenance and improvement. We provide such feedback through
the follow up actions we take to require remediation or deter recurrence of
such deficiencies.

The performance of high quality audits and the maintenance of effective audit
quality control systems by listed entity auditors are crucial elements of the
listed entity financial reporting ecosystem and contribute to ensuring Hong
Kong remains a competitive international financial centre. Our inspections
evaluate the quality of a selection of a listed entity auditor’s audits and the
effectiveness of the auditor’s quality control system. An inspection evaluates
the quality of the listed entity auditor’'s compliance with applicable professional
standards and legal and regulatory requirements.

oA

AOREHRE2021F4 51 E20229F3 8318 It
128 A BRI (RIRE AR - 0 R PIM0 &8 e i
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Completed 1 narrow-focus inspection
TR E SR

Published the 2020/21 Annual Inspection Report
BAN2020 21 FEERRE

Held 3 workshops with listed entity auditors
B E BRI ERT35 TIEY

Held a webinar with the members of the HKICPA
BEBETATE B RTREMNS

A detailed study on the inspection function by the
ICAC commenced

HERBRAZERRYERBEOFATRTR

MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
BN EFERE

Published the 2021/22 Interim Inspection Report
202122 HIE RS

Held a workshop with the members of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies

REE LT ARBEe BRI IIEY

Completed 2 narrow-focus inspections

TERCIESTH B R

PRP review of cases

BFERZREeERER

Completed 1 narrow-focus inspection

TR —IBEEIEE R

Held a webinar with the members of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA)

ER LRGN Y B RITREMNE

Held a webinar with the members of the HKICPA
HEEBEHRASE ERITRRMNE

Published the stakeholder engagement documents on further reform of the

accounting profession

BIE— SR E S EENFHE BB

Published results of our survey of implementation progress by listed
entities auditors for new and revised quality management standards

B E BRI R RSB ERE LN B TEENAEER

Robust inspections play a key role in monitoring and improving the quality
of audits of listed entities, and therefore contribute to the protection of the
interests of the investors and the wider public. We continue to promote audit
quality through our highly interactive and educational inspection processes
and we reported publicly on our findings. Audits selected for inspections are
subject to independent and impartial reviews by our inspectors who all have
been in the audit profession for years and have extensive expertise in auditing,
accounting and financial reporting. During the engagement inspections, our
inspectors critically evaluate the quality of the audit evidence obtained by the
auditors and challenge them on their risk assessment and audit strategies.
Through this interactive and robust exercise, the auditors re-assess and re-
evaluate their work, understand and learn from the deficiencies identified and
take action to improve their next year’s audits.

At the conclusion of each inspection, we issue a confidential report to the
individual listed entity auditors inspected. These set out the findings from our

BENEENERERRG LT ERNETERS
EEERRER  ANRREREENEARR
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EENREFER

inspection. Characteristics of high quality audits and good practices observed
are also identified to enable firms to improve and promote the culture of high
quality audits. We received positive feedback from auditors with less than
100 public interest entity audits (Category B and C firms) that our sharing of
good practices observed from firms of similar size was insightful and valuable,
and it helped them to fill the knowledge gaps and reduce the time it takes to
develop responses to address the deficiencies identified. Auditors are also
encouraged to provide copies of the reports on individual audits inspected
to the audit committees of the listed entities concerned and to discuss their
responses to the findings described in the reports. This is an essential step
that will facilitate audit committees to effectively discharge their financial
reporting oversight role and to objectively assess the quality of their auditors.

As a transparent and accountable regulator, we publish periodic reports
to inform our regulatees and the public about our principal inspection
findings. The reports provide intelligence to listed entity auditors on common
deficiencies that they should consider and take into account so as to prevent
them from occurring in their future audits. The reports also highlight the
characteristics of high quality audits and good practices observed so that
auditors can implement them where applicable to improve their audit quality.
By explaining our perspectives and setting out our expectations, the reports
aim at influencing and shaping the behaviours of our regulatees. Our reports
also serve to remind and educate management, Boards and audit committees
about their roles and responsibilities in respect of financial reporting and as a
resource tool for them to challenge their auditors as to whether and how they
have addressed the common deficiencies highlighted in our reports.

In June 2021, we published our first Annual Inspection Report for inspections
completed in 2020. The report included the audit quality ratings for
engagements we inspected in 2020, the key drivers of those ratings, common
deficiencies identified in the firms’ systems of quality control and how we are
responding to those findings and ratings.

In November 2021, we issued our second Interim Inspection Report. This
interim report provided timely information and insights to auditors and
audit committees on common deficiencies in the engagements and firm-
wide systems of quality control we inspected, and enabled them to take
appropriate action ahead of the next audit cycle. The interim report also
included the actions we have taken in respect of inspections completed in
2020 and the potential areas of our inspection in 2022.

The interim results show that there have been improvements in a number of
key areas of the audit compared to the results of inspections in 2020. We
noted a significant reduction in the number and significance of deficiencies
for engagements of those auditors with more than 100 listed entity audits
(Category A firms). This indicated that the Category A firms, which collectively
audit approximately 70% of the Hong Kong listed entities by number and over
90% of the market capitalisation of the Hong Kong stock market, are taking
robust and effective action to enhance their audit quality. This should provide
the investing public and the wider public with increasing confidence in the
quality of the financial reporting and the audits of listed entities.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

The final results of our inspections and our expectations for actions to be
taken by listed entity auditors and audit committees is set out in our 2021
Annual Inspection Report published on 23 June 2022.

During the review period, we organised 7 workshops and webinars for
members of several professional bodies to enable them to gain an in-depth
understanding of the results and recommendations of our inspections. They
also provided a platform for our stakeholders to exchange their views and
raise their concerns. Over 750 professionals attended these workshops and
webinars and found them insightful and useful.

In addition to the regular inspections, we took steps in real-time to respond to
identified risks to audit quality. During the review period, we completed four
narrow-focus inspections into suspected non-compliance with professional
standards identified through our whistleblower channels and internal referrals
from the Investigation and Compliance Department.

We take initiatives to monitor the progress of the listed entity auditors’
transition to the new and revised quality management standards, which
will come into force on 15 December 2022. In March 2022, we published
the results of our survey of the progress being made by firms in the
implementation of the new standards. The survey results highlighted the
expected impact of the new standards on firms, the status of implementation
and the key challenges to be addressed by them by different category of
firms. The survey results enabled listed entity auditors to benchmark their
progress against their peers. We will issue a second survey to all auditors
in September 2022 to ascertain their readiness in complying with the new
standards by the effective date. We also discussed the survey results with the
Department of Oversight, Policy and Governance to facilitate its oversight of
the performance of the HKICPA in relation to the provision of both sufficient
and timely training and appropriate reference materials to the audit profession.

The FRC issues its Annual Inspection Report on 3 June 2021.
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Our inspection processes are subject to an appropriate level of oversight to
ensure that high quality and consistency are maintained. In December 2021,
the PRP reviewed our first year’s application of the inspection process. It
reviewed three engagement inspections and three inspections of systems
of quality control conducted by the FRC during the period from 1 October
2019 to 31 December 2020, and concluded that these cases were handled
in accordance with the internal procedures. In addition, the Inspection
Committee undertook an ex post review of a sample of inspections
completed in 2021 in April and May 2022, the aim of which is to ensure
that the FRC maintained fairness and consistency in its inspection process,
properly used its regulatory powers, and provide recommendations on how
the Department of Inspection might enhance their practices and procedures.

In view of the public interest involved in the inspection processes, and

BN EREFZEERENER  URRER
RESEBER—HE - BFEHRZESH20214F
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in addition to the oversight conducted by the PRP and the Inspection EREESHITEEI - BEAZBED 20214
Committee, in 2021 the ICAC conducted a detailed study in respect of the ;\TE%%-E.‘IZ FIRIMUE AT 1T F 4RA 9T - DARRER
practices and procedures of the inspection function to ensure that adequate #HEHIRESFRELEHBEEE
corruption prevention safeguards were in place.
Our operational performance RN EERIR
Listed entity Firms
auditors in inspected Engagements
Number of audit clients Hong Kong in 2021/22 inspected
20217225
EBLE® BEMN
EREPHEA BB SRS EERNIER
More than 100 #3100 6 6 31
Between 10 and 100 1021002 & 18 8 16
Less than 10 P10 19 3 3
43 17 50
Narrow-focus inspections FHEMEER 4

The FRC shares findings of inspections and investigations at the webinar for members of the ACCA.
HERNEEANE LARTFARSHAAEEENZTERRAEHER -
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In 2021, we achieved higher efficiency with a similar level of resources to
2020 by building on the experience gained from our first year of inspections.
We completed inspections of 17 registered listed entity auditors in Hong
Kong and 50 of their engagements (up from 37 engagements of 18 registered
listed entity auditors completed in 2020). In addition, we completed 4 narrow-
focus inspections during the review period.

To further enhance our effectiveness as an independent auditor regulator,
the ability to effectively inspect audit working papers located in the Mainland
is of paramount importance to the FRC. During the review period, we have
maintained regular contact with the SEB of the PRC Ministry of Finance and
worked closely with the SEB on the collaborative framework for conducting
inspections of cross-border engagements. Positive progress is being made
with the support of the SEB. We also continued to closely collaborate with
the SEB through regular knowledge sharing and information exchange and
cooperation on matters of mutual interest.

The 2021 Annual Inspection Report published on 23 June 2022 indicates
that, that there has been a year-on-year improvement in the overall audit
quality as compared to the 2020 inspections. We will continue to strengthen
our communication with audit firms and monitor the effectiveness of action
taken by them to improve audit quality. We will continue to collaborate and
share relevant information with local regulators on issues related to audit
quality to uphold the highest standard of financial reporting and protect
the public interest. In the coming year, we will continue to conduct high-
quality inspections and increase the size and complexity of the listed entity
engagements we inspect.

Under the further reform of the accounting profession, we will take over from
the HKICPA the responsibility for conducting inspections of practice units.
This will add to our existing inspection functions in relation to listed entity
audits completed by listed entity auditors. To prepare for this expanded role,
we will work closely with the HKICPA to ensure a smooth and seamless
transition of this new responsibility to the FRC. The future AFRC will adopt a
proportionality approach to regulate the practice units. The assumption of this
function will enhance the strength of the regulatory regime of the accounting
profession.
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EENREFER

The FRC has been vested with the powers of investigation and enquiry since
its establishment in December 2006. These are the regulatory responses
we need to deploy when our market surveillance activities respectively
detect possible non-compliance with accounting requirements by listed
entities in their financial reports or possible auditing misconduct by auditors
of listed entities (possible deficiencies). Our market surveillance depends
not only on our market monitoring activities but also on effective processes
that encourage other regulators, members of the public, our regulatees
and whistleblowers to provide us with intelligence about such possible
deficiencies.

For investigation cases involving audits of listed entities completed on or after
1 October 2019, our investigation findings will be referred to our Disciplinary
function where disciplinary action is required. Under transitional arrangements
in the amended FRCO, investigation cases involving audits of listed entities
completed before 1 October 2019 continue to be referred to the HKICPA for
consideration of disciplinary action. For enquiries cases where we conclude
that there is a non-compliance, we take action to have the non-compliance
removed.
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Complaints and other sources of investigations and enquiries
The main sources of potential investigations and enquiries are:

(@  Complaints from members of the public;

(b)  Whistleblower reports;

(c)  Referrals from other regulators;

(d)  Internal referrals of assessment reports from our monitoring of market
events;

(e)  Internal referrals of Inspection reports; and

4] Internal referrals of assessment reports from our Financial Statements
Review Programme (FSRP).

We provide a platform for members of the public, our regulatees and
whistleblowers to make complaints or provide information about possible
deficiencies they are aware of. Referrals from other regulators are made
through established channels.

We monitor market events that may indicate possible deficiencies,
through channels such as media reports, short-seller reports and market
announcements.

Our FSRP is a non-statutory initiative, which is part of our market monitoring
activities that proactively addresses listed entity financial reporting quality.
We select financial statements of PIEs for review using approved risk-based
criteria. These selection criteria are reviewed regularly in response to changes
in the current economic and regulatory environment. We identify financial
statements for review by monitoring the published financial statements of
listed entities against our criteria and from our monitoring of market events.
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EEREFDRE

Our progress and achievements

HFIRVER KRR

i i
APR 4H

Closed one investigation

ER—REE
MAY 5H

2020 Annual Report of PRP issued
EFEREZEGEM20205FF W

JUN 6A

PRP review of cases

EFERZEgHMAR

Completed first investigation with Mainland working
papers obtained with MOF assistance

EFBENHE T efios kA THEERNE —RAS
Made a request for MOF assistance

) BB 4R 1 — B 75 B sk

OCT 104

NOV 114

SERBAEHE
DEC 12AH
H LT B R

FRNFHE

Issued press release in relation to starting an enquiry into a listed
entity’s financial statements and investigation of the audit

RE—R LT ERNVBRRRASHALETBERTHEIR

Issued the First Annual Investigation and Compliance Report
BMENFERSHRE

Joint operation with the ICAC involving a search of the offices of a PIE auditor
78 BE-RARFEERZBMHBERE

Launched new whistleblowing policy

Completed four investigations

ﬁmm

I I
$ Yr

JUL7AH

New FRRP appointments

ZEFUBERBRTEZE®

AUG 8A

Issued press release in relation to starting investigations
and enquiry of a listed entity

BE—RETERNRE REAEMAEDR
Completed second investigation with MOF assistance
HEFBEHE Tk E - RREE

SEP 94

00—
JAN 1H

Made two requests for MOF assistance
10 B B B 4t P 1B 7 B s K

FEB 2R

Completed one investigation

R —RHE
MAR 3A

Made a request for MOF assistance
A B BB 4R H — B3 Bh s K

Briefing to FRRP
A RS PE i & B YRR3R

Made a request for MOF assistance
) BUaER 4 H — 1 73 Bh 55 5K

During the year, we continued to focus on enhancing our monitoring of
market events, collaboration with other regulators and the confidence of
whistleblowers to report directly to us. A new whistleblowing policy was
developed to encourage whistleblowers to report wrongdoing or misconduct
in an area that we regulate. As indicated in “our operational performance”
section, the number of complaints received from different sources, including
whistleblowers and other regulators, have increased in this year.

We have maintained public transparency of our work where appropriate to
support market understanding of our expectations and confidence that we
will act on information received, in particular for cases with significant public

RAFE  RMBER D NETISEHER - &
Hi BB HWIE A (ERIRARBATE MR MRHR
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interest. We issued our first Annual Investigation and Compliance Report
to provide information of our work and its progress and observations and
findings arising from our investigation and enquiry work. In addition, we have
shared our observations and findings in the report with stakeholders through
workshops organised by professional or other bodies.

During the year, we have prioritised our resources to handle older cases,
cases where audit working papers located in the Mainland have been
obtained and cases with significant public interest. With an increased level of
complaints received and investigations initiated and without an increase in our
resources, eight investigations were completed during the year.

We have continued to strengthen our collaborations with other regulators
under the established Memoranda of Understanding (MoU). For example, we
carried out a joint operation with the ICAC involving a search of the offices of
a PIE auditor in November 2021.

Having obtained the audit working papers located in the Mainland for seven
investigations in November 2020 with the assistance of the Supervision
and Evaluation Bureau (SEB) of the PRC Ministry of Finance, two of these
investigations were completed during the year and the investigation reports
were transferred to the HKICPA for consideration of disciplinary actions.
During the year, we made five requests for the assistance of the SEB in
gaining access to audit working papers for four further investigation cases.

Our Process Review Panel (PRP) scrutinises our work to ensure that individual
cases have been dealt with in line with internal procedures and guidelines.

In June 2021, the PRP selected and reviewed nine of the 98 cases handled
by the investigation and enquiry functions in 2020. While the PRP concluded
that the FRC had handled the cases in accordance with its internal
procedures, they also made recommendations to the FRC for enhancement
of procedures/guidelines.

The FRC presents its first
Annual Investigation and
Compliance Report and
second interim Inspection
Report to the media on
3 November 2021.
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EENREFER

Operational statistics for Investigations and Enquiries (cases) and for
complaints, reports and referrals from which they have been sourced (sources)
are provided below for the year, with comparatives for the previous 18 month
period due to a change of the financial year end to 31 March under the
regulatory reform in 2019.

Key operational statistics for the year/period

Pursuable complaints, whistleblower reports and
referrals received!
No. of financial statements selected for review

S yin

Investigations initiated RFEFAENERE
Investigations completed FTERAEREZR
Enquiries initiated ERATANEZR
Enquiries completed STEREREEE

Complaints and referrals

Every complaint received is carefully evaluated prior to determining the
appropriate action to be taken, i.e. to close it, refer it to another function, refer
it to other regulators or initiate an investigation or enquiry. During the year, we
received a total of 277 complaints, of which 101 were pursuable being taken
further, 163 were pursuable but not taken further and the remaining 13 were
outside the remit of the FRC, i.e. not involving auditing misconduct committed
by auditors or reporting accountants of listed entities or non-compliance with
accounting requirements in the financial reports of listed entities. The sources
of which were as follows:

Complaints from: WHFRE -
Members of the public' NRAL!
Whistleblowers BWA

Referrals from: #hg
HKEX B
HKICPA N
SFC HEg
CCB EEXELEE
ICAC REAZE
Other enforcement agencies HAb A
Inspection BERERF

Total being taken further’ TFEREGE — 1T R IR AR 4B 5T

! Excluded 163 pursuable complaints of a vexatious, abusive or unreasonably persistent
nature, which were not taken further.
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101" 67

75 61

32 23

8 7

14 2
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BN EFERE

100 252 352 48 67 1012
[ Members of the public?
s\ 2
16% ARAL
80 '
Regulators and enforcement agencies
BB A S
60
. Referral from Inspection
EREREEN
40
20
44% 51% 1% 63%
o
2017 2018 Sept 2019 2019-21 2021-22
20174 20184 2019494 2019-214F 2021-224F
Category of listed entity auditor involved in complaints and referrals? RIS RENE) TR RS E R

20%
80

16%

1%
57%

. Category A firms

ERIAGETRITT

Category B firms
FBRIBEEHRITT

. Category C firms
SBRICEEHNT
58%

(Note: A complaint or referral may involve more than one
audiitor)

(Hfat - —5FREF BT AIGE S R 2R —E 1 HAN)

60
40
63%
20 40%
0
2017 2018
20174 20184

Sept 2019 2019-21
20194F9A 2019-214

2021-22
2021-224F

2 Excluded 101, 50 and 163 pursuable complaints not taken further for the years 2017, 2 TRIERE20174F ~ 20184 2021-224 /101 * 50

2018 and 2021-22 respectively.
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EENEFERR

We handled 216 complaints and referrals during the year including 29
brought forward from the previous period and the 264 pursuable complaints
and referrals received during the year. As at 31 March 2022, 77 complaints

and referrals were still being evaluated.

Brought forward

Pursuable complaints received
Pursuable complaints not taken further®
Completed with no follow-up action
Initiated investigation or enquiry

In progress at end of the year/period

Pursuable complaints are completed with no follow-up action when there are
no circumstances identified that suggested that auditing misconduct or non-
compliance with accounting requirements had occurred based on our review

of the information available.

Financial statements selected for review under FSRP
During the year, the criteria that drove our selections of financial statements

for review under our FSRP were as follows:

Selection criteria

Companies undertaking significant changes in business
activities or having significant changes in business
activities, financial positions and results

Financial statements with alleged non-compliance with
accounting requirements and/or auditing irregularities
based on media reports/companies subject to
intervention by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited/long suspended companies other than shells
— identified through our monitoring of market events

Financial statements with significant prior period
adjustments other than those reflecting a change in
accounting policy or resulting from an adoption of
newly introduced financial reporting standards

Financial statements with modified auditor’s report
where there are indications of auditing irregularities in
prior year’s audit;

8 The 154 pursuable complaints of a vexatious, abusive or unreasonably persistent 8

nature.
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Selection criteria

Delay of results announcement due to COVID-19

Resignation of auditors due to unresolved audit issues
and successor auditor issued an unmodified audit
opinion

Companies principally engaged in retail or tourism
related industries

Companies having indicators of impairment of
non-financial assets and/or a going concern problem

Financial statements prepared under Chinese
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

In progress at the beginning of the year/period
Financial statements selected during the year/period
Completed with no follow-up action

Initiated investigation or enquiry

In progress at the end of the year/period

MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
BN EFERE
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(76)
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39
62

2 investigations (2019-21: 4) were initiated from the FSRP reviews during the ~ RAZARFE - IREM G RKE M EIBHRMA2RE

year. EEZ(2019-216 : 45R) ©
Investigations HE
2021-22 2019-21
2021-225F 2019-214F
In progress at the beginning of the year/period F/HYAERHNER 58 42
Initiated in the year/period F/HNRARAENER 32 23
Handled during the year/period F/HREENER 90 65
Completed B (8) ()
In progress at the end of the year/period F RN RAEPEZR 82 58
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During the year, we handled 58 investigations brought forward from the
previous period and 32 that we initiated during the year. We completed eight
investigations during the year, 7 of which identified auditing irregularities
related to audits completed prior to 1 October 2019. Accordingly, the
investigation reports have been referred to the HKICPA to consider
disciplinary action. One investigation was closed without further action during
the year as the allegations were not substantiated.

Of the 82 investigations in progress at the end of the year, 13 cases involve
audit working papers located in the Mainland.

Category of firms involved in investigations initiated in 2017 to the end of the
year:

RAFE @ HPEEE L —HHEERANGSRA
BERAREAFERANIEHEMESE  FI
RAFEZTRERHEER - EP7RERKER
FHE2019F10 A1 R AT SR BV E B e ES
NETR - Bt SAERECENEESEL
g UAERLREROTTE - RAFE  —FHE
AR - WEREGE— 2178 - REMEEEYE

HEE -

EAFERDERETHS2RAE[ES » 13FR
AZH RIF R N BT TIEET -

B2017TFREAFERSRAENGETANITEE
Al

2017 2018 Sept 2019 2019-21 2021-22

20174 20184 201999 A 2019-214F 2021-22%F

Category A firms FERIAZFTRITT 21 19 26 26 38
Category B firms $ERIBEFHAITT 14 19 12 22 33
Category C firms ERICEETRNTT 5 5 4 10 11
40 43 42 58 82

During the year, the HKICPA took regulatory actions in response to 7
investigations, which we had completed and referred to them in earlier years,
as follows:

Resolution by agreements (RBA) HERRER
Disciplinary sanctions wERS
Settlement AR

For the two cases completed under RBA, the relevant parties were publicly
reprimanded, ordered to pay an administrative penalty and required to
reimburse the costs of the FRC and the HKICPA.

For the five cases with disciplinary sanctions, there were significant allegations
and the relevant parties were publicly reprimanded, ordered to pay an
administrative penalty ranging from HK$100,000 to HK$500,000 and required
to reimburse the costs of the FRC and the HKICPA.
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Enquiries

In cases where we believe that there may be non-compliance with accounting
requirements by a PIE, we may initiate an enquiry, which may be conducted
either by our investigation staff or a Financial Reporting Review Committee
(FRRC). During the year, we handled three enquiries brought forward from
the previous period and 14 enquiries initiated during the year. One enquiry
initiated during the year was completed and a notice was issued by the FRC
to the listed entity for the removal of the relevant non-compliance. There are
16 ongoing enquiries at the end of the year.

Two enquiries brought forward from the previous period are being conducted
by FRRC. The remaining one brought forward from the previous period and
all the enquiries initiated during the year are being conducted by the FRC
staff, under delegated powers from the Board.
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M
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2021-22 2019-21

2021-225F 2019-214F

In progress at the beginning of the year/period FEERF O ER 3 1
Initiated in the year/period F/HRRMAETAER 14 2
Completed EREMAEZR (1) -
In progress at end of the year/period F/HRINEETPEZR 16 3

We will continue to further enhance the efficiency of our processes and build
resources to address the backlog of investigation cases whilst maintaining
our ability to respond with agility to new significant public interest cases.

We will also focus on ensuring that we are well prepared in respect of
resource planning and developing procedures to handle the new functions to
be transferred under the further reform efficiently and effectively.
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Oversight, Policy and Governance

In fulfilling the mission of the FRC, we understand and anticipate risks to the
quality of financial reporting and auditing of listed entities at the overall system
level (system level risk) and take pre-emptive actions to address these risks.
Our work in this area is referred to as Oversight, Policy and Governance.

Oversight and Recognition

We perform two statutory functions in this area. We oversee the HKICPA’s
performance of registration and the setting of professional ethics and
audit related standards and continuing professional development (CPD)
requirements for local listed entity auditors (Specified Functions). We are also
responsible for the recognition of overseas auditors performing audits for
Hong Kong listed entities.

These functions are critical elements of the overall system for regulating listed
entities auditors. Oversight addresses the qualifications of local auditors
and maintains professional competence and standards of their conduct
and performance. Similarly, recognition addresses the suitability of overseas
auditors. Information obtained from these functions provides inputs for
our risk assessments on the quality of listed entity auditors and thereby,
strengthening performance of our statutory functions of regulating listed entity
auditors.

Policy and Governance

We also conduct research on policy issues relating to the quality of financial
reporting and auditing of listed entities. This includes obtaining and analysing
market information about listed entities and listed entity auditors, and
monitoring local and international developments of professional standards for
financial reporting and auditing. Such information provides broader insights
for our risk assessments, which we may consequently take action to modify
our monitoring activities (inspection and FSRP) and develop guidelines for the
performance of key governance roles, in particular the audit committees who
oversees the financial reporting processes.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Our progress and achievements
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Oversight
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On-site assessment commenced

FItRIRIZ R

Second report published
MmE

Annual renewal completed

Policy and Governance
First Audit Committee Guidelines
BhENEAZEEES
Policy and Governance

Three articles published with IFEC
BRERESEH=RXE

HAMth

JUL-SEP7RA%

Recognition

R

Operational procedures streamlined and
application forms enhanced
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Policy and Governance
BERRER

Two articles published with IFEC
BRKRZGEMMRENE

Oversight

During the year, we completed our second assessment of the HKICPA’s
performance of the Specified Functions, and published a report on
16 December 2021 outlining our findings and recommendations. In this
assessment, we assessed the HKICPA’s performance against its policies
and procedures, and evaluated its follow-up actions in response to our
recommendations from the first assessment.

We noted that four of our nine recommendations from our first assessment
were satisfactorily followed up by the HKICPA. Although policies and
procedures had been developed by the HKICPA to address four other
recommendations we raised (one relating to governance, two to CPD and
one to standard setting), we found that there was room for improvement in
terms of their effectiveness. We, therefore, made additional recommendations
to re-address them. Regarding the remaining finding and recommendation
on prescription of specific CPD requirements for registered PIE auditors,
for which no follow-up actions had been taken, we have repeated and
strengthened this recommendation in our report. In addition, we have made
three new recommendations relating to registration based on the findings
from our second assessment.
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Policy and Governance
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Two briefing sessions on Audit Committee
Guidelines held
BITMABHENZESESINEHE

EE
RIPESERZRTE - RUHEBETIASRET
FEPABRRE MRS - R 2021F 12 H16 A3 KRR

o BRI IR RS o RRFHET
BARBEELGEAMAGRRLEFIERER
B WrHEER R E R AEE RO RAETT
@J o

BIVEEE BRESMASESHRMMERF
AR H IR EFE’JEIE%HXTi@;?E’JEELﬁ
P BEDLEHAMASCHERRMIZFRIE
TR RS INDIRE R (—HEER AR - MR
B EREEREECERERM U R —RERE
%’é/ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ) BPBERZETHORRDARE
Z=f - Ft - RABRBEINEZ - ARIERE
MBRREER D o LR T A BREM AR M E B
5&&%%@%%@{%%%%* NI IR
78 ARMERSEHERLHRFIZAE
% ° lklzﬁ\\ CBPIRIBE —RFEERREMER
RE=IEHREE -

B E RS 2021-22% 3R * Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2021-22

61



62
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Since our report published in December 2021, we observed that the
HKICPA has implemented new policies and procedures in response to our
recommendations, which include the nomination and performance evaluation
of committee members, the compliance audit process on CPD requirements
and the update of professional ethics and audit related standards. We will
review the progress of the HKICPA's follow-up actions in the coming on-site
assessment and where appropriate assess their effectiveness.

Oversight

observed

NBRBEMEERAEHMASREEeRRE

1 g Number of meetings of the HKICPA’s committees

ﬂ Number of HKICPA'’s periodic reports reviewed
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Second report published
on 16 December 2021
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Recognition

We completed the review of 36 new and 50 renewal applications submitted
by overseas entities listed in Hong Kong for recognition of their overseas
auditors. This is a substantive process, which includes evaluating whether the
auditor has the resources and capabilities to carry out the listed entity’s audit.
As at 31 March 2022, we recognized 25 overseas auditors which performed
audits for 55 overseas entities listed in Hong Kong and four overseas listing
applicants.

In addition, 11 Mainland auditors, who have been endorsed under the Mutual
Recognition Agreement, were recognized as PIE auditors performing audits
for 87 Mainland entities listed in Hong Kong as at 31 March 2022.

Recognition

)

Number of applications reviewed

CEMAFENHE

36
a0

New applications

TR E

36

Renewal applications
BB R

Policy and Governance

We conducted policy and governance projects which are conducive to
enhancing the quality of financial reporting and audit quality, namely the
publication of “Guidelines for Effective Audit Committees — Selection,
Appointment and Reappointment of Auditors” (Guidelines) and collaboration
with the Investor and Financial Education Council (IFEC) to publish articles to
promote financial literacy of the general public.
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The FRC presents to the media the Guidelines for Effective Audit Committee and Report on
Assessment of the HKICPA'’s Performance of the Specified Functions.
BIE R E R R R T L B @AREEESI REEE G AN TIEABEE M A RE -

Audit committees are a cornerstone in the process of maintaining audit
quality and of their various duties under the Listing Rules, they are primarily
responsible for making recommendation to the board on the selection,
appointment and reappointment of auditors. Against this background, on
16 December 2021, we published the Guidelines to provide specific and
practical guidelines for audit committees to establish a robust process for
selecting, appointing and reappointing auditors, an essential first step in
achieving audit quality.

The Guidelines highlight two key considerations in selecting and appointing
auditors — audit quality and audit fees, provide advice on conducting an
effective audit tender and outline the key issues and procedures that audit
committees should consider or perform when auditors resign or when audit
committees intend to remove auditors. To promote transparency of audit
committees’ work in this area, recommendations are made on the information
to be disclosed in the corporate governance report.

The Guidelines have been well-received by the key stakeholders as a
pragmatic and useful tool to help audit committees effectively discharge their
responsibilities. We believe the Guidelines would have a profound impact on
enhancing the quality of financial reporting of listed entities, strengthening
investor protection and maintaining investor confidence and effective
functioning of capital market.

To further promote the adoption of the Guidelines by audit committees,
we hosted two briefing sessions for members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. Over
100 company directors, audit committee members and senior executives
participated in the briefings.
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Promoting financial literacy through strategic collaboration
with the IFEC

In order to promote financial literacy among retail investors and the general
public, we collaborated with the IFEC to publish a series of reader-friendly
articles for demystifying some of the more complex elements of financial
statements and auditor’s reports and educating investors about the quality
of the financial statements, including red flags that they should take heed of
when making informed investment decisions. Topics covered in these articles
are “Auditor’s Opinion”, “Key Audit Matters of Financial Statements”, “Assets
Impairment”, “Goodwill” and “Going Concern”.

Our operational performance

We observed the meetings of the HKICPA committees responsible for the
Specified Functions (i.e. the Registration and Practicing Committee for
registration of PIE auditors; the Ethics Committee for setting standards on
professional ethics and continuing professional development requirements;
and the Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee for setting
standards on auditing and assurance practices). We also reviewed the
HKICPA'’s quarterly activity reports which include the statistics of CPAs,
CPAs (Practising), PIE auditors and registered responsible persons for PIE
engagements; international standard setting events attended by HKICPA
representatives; new or revised PIE standards; and CPD courses offered.
These procedures enabled us to keep track of the HKICPA’s performance
and take prompt actions where needed.

The adoption of policies and procedures for the recognition of overseas
auditors enabled us to process applications timely and make fair and
consistent decisions. During the year, we streamlined the operational
procedures and enhanced the application forms to expedite the process and
shorten the duration of decision making.

Applicant was notified in writing of our decision on new application within 30
business days and on renewal application within 20 business days, from the
date when we were satisfied that no supplementary information was required.

Looking ahead
We will continue to develop and drive policy and governance projects to
influence and shape the behaviours of our regulatees and other stakeholders.

On the policy and governance frontier, we will engage audit committees,
listed entity auditors and other stakeholders to promote active adoption of the
Guidelines for the improvement of audit quality. Moreover, we will continue
the strategic collaboration with the IFEC to promote financial literacy of the
public.

In the area of oversight, to ensure timely follow-up by the HKICPA
in addressing our recommendations, we will in particular monitor its
implementation of policy and procedures of the nomination and performance
of committee members, and the prescription of CPD requirements for listed
entity auditors. Both of which have a significant impact on the effectiveness of
regulation of listed entity auditors.

Under the further reform, we will be vested with powers to register practice
units and local listed entity auditors and issue practising certificates to
Certified Public Accountants, for which the registration criteria will remain
largely the same as those adopted by the HKICPA. We will implement an
efficient and robust evaluation process to ensure the overall competency of
the auditing profession.
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Discipline

What we do and why

To ensure an effective regulatory regime, the FRC will take timely and
appropriate disciplinary actions against regulatees who committed
misconduct by imposing proportionate sanctions. In doing so, our primary
purposes are to protect the public interest and deter misconduct.

The disciplinary function plays a pivotal role in promoting a culture of
accountability and upholding proper standards of conduct amongst
regulatees so as to enhance the quality and reliability of future audits. This
will in turn strengthen public confidence in the integrity of the accounting
profession and the quality of corporate reporting, and safeguard the
reputation and integrity of our markets.

Our progress and achievements
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Discipline, a new function under the regulatory reform in 2019, has been
building its resources progressively as the commencement of its operation is
expected to be later than that of other functions. With the Head of Discipline
on board in July 2021 and our initial team of six staff in place by November
2021, we have made significant progress in the past year to establish the
function and ensure its readiness to handle the first disciplinary cases, which
are expected to reach us in the coming financial year.
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sophy
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With the onset of the further reform and the expansion of our regulatory
remit, we commenced the preparatory work to formulate the draft policies,
processes and guidelines for professional persons. We have also taken the
opportunity to review the existing policies and guidelines for PIE auditors
and registered responsible persons in order to improve its effectiveness in
delivering appropriate regulatory outcomes.

When developing these proposed policies and processes, we aimed to strike
an appropriate balance between fairness, impartiality and transparency on
the one hand, and the need to ensure the efficient and effective resolution
of disciplinary cases on the other hand. We have also carefully considered
the practice and procedures adopted by other local and overseas financial
regulators to ensure that they are in line with international standards.

To encourage and recognize the value and importance of cooperation in
investigations and disciplinary actions, we have also developed a guidance
note relating to cooperation, which sets out our expectations on cooperation,
the types of cooperative and uncooperative conduct, and provides greater
transparency on how discounts will be applied. This is expected to encourage
timely conclusion of disciplinary matters, facilitate the early detection and
prompt remediation of misconduct, and foster a culture of responsibility and
self-improvement in regulatees.
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On 9 March 2022, we released an Engagement and Consultation Paper on
the Further Reform of the Accounting Profession. The Consultation Paper
includes five consultation documents relating to the disciplinary process
and sanctions approach, and three engagement documents to provide the
public more background about our disciplinary powers and approach to
cooperation. The consultation, which ran for 8 weeks until 4 May 2022, aimed
to facilitate stakeholders to understand our rationale and solicit their views
on how to ensure our proposed policies meet the expectations of the public
through an effective disciplinary regime.

Consultation Paper on
() Outline of the AFRC’s Disciplinary Process

(i) Guidelines for Exercising the Power to Impose
a Pecuniary Penalty for PIE Auditors and
Registered Responsible Persons

(i) Guidelines for Exercising the Power to Impose
a Pecuniary Penalty for Professional Persons

(iv) Sanctions Policy for PIE Auditors and
Registered Responsible Persons

(v)  Sanctions Policy for Professional Persons

9March 2022

On the same day, we held a press briefing to launch the Paper and our
stakeholder engagement programme. The stakeholder engagement
programme involved webinars, closed-door meetings and media interviews
for different target audience and interest groups, including the profession,
users of financial statements e.g. listed company directors, audit committee
members and banks, professional bodies and associations, as well as other
regulators.
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The FRC holds a press briefing to launch the Engagement and Consultation Paper on the Further Reform of the Accounting Profession

on 9 March 2022.
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The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors (SCAA) organises a webinar on the FRC’s further reform on 30 March 2022.
BREAGEIAEN20226F3 A0 & THERE EXEEHEE - THEB LTS -

The comments and feedback received as part of the consultation exercise will ~ FFIRH EF A R RBHN A XL EE D HIE
be taken into consideration in developing an effective disciplinary regime that B - i5Z ER AR BREPWENE R MRE -
meets the expectations of the public.

To ensure consistency and fairness, we have also been developing an AR —BUE R AT - HMIINE EHIE R IR
internal operations manual, which sets out our detailed internal procedures to  1EFffft * B E AR MEZERITBENFHAI
facilitate the proper discharge of our duties. o

We will continue to build our resources and fine tune our procedures to  HFB#EEETERLE(LRF - UWEREME
ensure that we are well equipped to carry out our disciplinary function fairly, ~ FE0%EH - LAAF « @3 - BUHH N EIT4E
efficiently and effectively. Ba o HaEE o
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Legal Department

What we do and why

As an independent auditor regulator, we must demonstrate that we act
impartially, transparently, and with integrity and proficiency. Legal Department
advises the Board on all legal and ethical related matters, covering not
only regulatory functions but also corporate governance arrangements and
compliance with laws and regulations.

Legal Department also provides legal advice for the effective discharge of
our regulatory activities and initiatives. To that end, the Department works
closely with other functional departments to understand their strategic
and operational issues in order to identify and manage any legal risks, for
the achievement of their departmental objectives and the FRC’s strategic
development as a whole.

[l ) 1 =l

Inlaltd 2 E

Progress and achievements

During the review period, in addition to providing regular legal support to the
organisation as a whole, there are 3 important areas of Legal Department’s
work which are worth highlighting.

Further Reform

The further reform of the accounting profession has been the focus and
priority of Legal Department’s work. As the regulatory authority responsible
for carrying the further reform into effect, the FRC played a significant role in
the finalisation of the legal framework for the further reform. Legal Department
worked closely with the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau in
formulating the assimilation of the new functions into the FRC’s model of
independent regulation in the drafting stage of the proposed amendments to
the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance.
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The Regulatory Reform Committee consisting of selected Board Members
has been set up to assist the Board in the oversight of the preparation for
the further reform, including the review of draft legislation, proposed policies
and procedures, recruitment of human resources, systems requirements and
implementation and other administrative needs. Legal Department provided
support to the Committee throughout the review period by preparing reports
and updates to the Committee to facilitate their effective oversight of our
preparation.

Legal Department provided advice to the Board and Management on the
review of the draft legislation, its legal effect and any practical implications
for the FRC and the profession in the application of the proposed legislation;
followed closely the legislative process and the policy issues raised by the Bills
Committee; liaised with the Bureau over the committee stage amendments,
and saw the Amendment Bill through to its passage by LegCo.

The enactment of the amended legislation was to be followed by subsidiary
legislation providing for the detailed transitional arrangements for FRC’s
assumption of the new statutory functions. Legal Department has been
working studiously with colleagues in other departments in understanding
the practical operations of the new functions, the relative demands for and
availability of resources required by the FRC and the HKICPA for handling
transitional matters and the dictates of the different legislation under which
the FRC and the HKICPA operate. These efforts have been made in order to
work out a set of proposed arrangements that will provide a smooth transition
and avoid unnecessary disruption for the profession. These arrangements
have been incorporated into the draft subsidiary legislation over which Legal
Department has been keeping a close liaison with the Bureau.

Regulatory collaboration with other authorities

As a regulator of auditors of listed entities in an international financial centre,
the FRC operates in an environment in which different sectors and interests
co-exist which are regulated by other authorities or regulatory bodies.
Regulatory collaboration remains one of the key strategies of the FRC to
bring about a more efficient use of available resources among regulators, the
sharing of information and intelligence relevant to each other’s functions, and
a coordinated effort in tackling cases of common interest.
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Financial
Repor’rlng Council

The FRC and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited sign a new Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)
to further strengthen collaboration on 8 June 2021.
BATE /B ERESE 32 PN 2021 6P 6 A8 B B B ARIR A IR A — S IS8 E T &1 -

The 2019 reform gave the FRC expanded regulatory powers over auditors of
listed entities, and increased the scope of regulatory collaboration with other
authorities. Legal Department worked with these other authorities in reviewing
and redrafting our existing memorandums of understanding, to reflect the
FRC’s expanded functions and to increase the breadth and depth of potential
cooperation in order to achieve more effective regulatory outcomes.

The review period saw the renewal and the signing of memorandums of
understanding with the SFC, the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
the HKICPA. We also signed a new memorandum of understanding with the
ICAC, our first with a law enforcement agency.

oMU

55 FRCEg
CAC

=lorandum of Und:r' =
Signing © N

-]

2019F MM B EAAXBE LT EEZBEMNEE
B WRAREMEENEE S IFHE < X2
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R R - ARBRA B SRR A B R K 1 InE
EAENEERRE  KMEREBRNEEK
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The FRC signs MoU with ICAC to enhance collaboration in upholding the integrity of the financial market on

29 September 2021.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Strategic Policies

The FRC also introduced two policies which are highly important to the
achievement of our strategic goals: the whistleblowing policy and the high
profile matters policy. Legal Department contributed to the formulation and
drafting of these polices by providing advice to Management on the legal and
operational considerations.

The high profile matters policy is an internal policy that is aimed at enabling
Management to anticipate or identify matters of potentially high public interest
or that may attract significant public attention on which the FRC would
reasonably be expected or called upon to communicate publicly or take
regulatory action. Management will need to determine what resources should
be applied by different departments to arrive at the proposed regulatory
outcome and the extent to which Management’s preparation and work should
be prioritised. In a number of such cases in the review period, Management
acted swiftly to protect the public interest and helped instil public confidence
in the integrity of the regulatory system.

The introduction of the whistleblowing policy coincided with a significant
increase in the number of whistleblowing reports made to the FRC, a valuable
source of information that provides the FRC with insights from inside the
listed entities or audit firms into wrongdoing or misconduct which may
otherwise never come to light. The purpose of the policy is to encourage the
making of whistleblowing reports by explaining to potential whistleblowers the
importance of their information to the FRC and the public interest, the steps
we will take to protect their identities and the security of their information
under a dedicated internal procedure set up under the policy, and how we
can make use of their information in the public interest.

Looking ahead

Implementation of the further reform will remain high on Legal Department ‘s
agenda for the coming financial year, as the reformed regulatory regime for
the accounting profession is expected to start before the end of 2022.

Legal Department will continue to work closely with the Bureau on the
subsidiary legislation which has to be put in place before the start of LegCo’s
summer recess. Internally, Legal Department will collaborate with other
departments to ensure that any legal and compliance needs are met for the
transitional period and for the commencement of the further reform.

Legal Department will also provide support to the Board on the review and
update of our governance structure, corporate polices, the terms of reference
of our committees and the delegation of powers to Management and staff,
in light of the FRC’s additional functions and emerging needs and objectives.
Legal support to other departments in their discharge of the new functions
will remain vital to the smooth implementation of the further reform.
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EENREFER

Corporate Functions

What we do and why

Our corporate functions manage the availability, quality, security and efficient
use of our key resources — our facilities, people, information technology and
financial resources — and enhance our stakeholder engagement through the
effective delivery of our corporate communications and events.

Our progress and achievements

Achieving the desired outcomes from our corporate functions depends
critically on successful establishment and implementation of appropriate
policies and procedures. With the growth and expansion of our functions
under the Further Reforms, our policies and procedures have been a key
focus of our corporate functions in the review year.

People
Our focus in significantly expanding our workforce to deal with our new and
ongoing functions has been on building an integrated high performance team.

To recruit, retain and develop talented people to achieve effective regulatory
outcomes, our updated staff competency framework has been integrated
with our people development system, through robust training, appraisal and
promotion policies and procedures.

The FRC strives to build “ One Culture, One Team”.
BE R NE— 3t - — B -
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Corporate Communications

During the review period, we engaged with various stakeholders through
numerous events and activities that enhanced communication and
strengthened relationship with local, Mainland and international stakeholders.

6 May 2021
202145 H6H

8 Jun 2021
202146 A8H

18 Jun 2021
202146 518H
Jun 2021
202146 7

26 Jul 2021

202147 H26H

Jul 2021
202147 B

10 Sep 2021
20219 H10H

MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Signing Ceremony for Memorandum of Understanding
between the HKICPA and the FRC

Signing Ceremony for Memorandum of Understanding
between The Exchange and the FRC

Webinar on Accounting Reform organised by the Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors, Accounting
Development Foundation and Business School of HKUST

FRC joined IOSCO as an affiliate member

Seminar for HKINEDA on Overview of the Market for
Listed Entity Audits in Hong Kong and considerations for
Directors

Training seminars on Annual Inspection Report’s findings
for HKICPA online training platform and HKINEDA

Briefing and reception for the Financial Reporting Review

Panel

° Briefing for new members and expressing gratitude
to retired members
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EEREFEE
29 Sept 2021 Signing Ceremony for Memorandum of Understanding
202149 H29H between the ICAC and the FRC
3 Nov 2021 Press briefing on (i) Annual Investigation and Compliance
2021411 A3H Report and (i) Interim Inspection Report
9 Nov 2021 Video conference with SEB of MOF
2021411 A9H ° Exploring collaboration opportunities in inspection
and investigation
1 Dec 2021 Launch of new whistleblowing policy and webpage

2021 1281H

HERAEREFEFETEORERL

(VFERAERS M()HRERREHEG
wme

R RMHAEETFERREE:

s  SREMERELATHAIFHE

HEH TR R R RAARAR

16 Dec 2021 Press briefing on (i) Guidelines for Effective Audit  ()EFTZ BB YEERSI RINEESE

202112 816H Committee and (ii) Report on Assessment of the HKICPA’s  &HAl A S 1175 B8 B AL AT (A TR & O 3T B
Performance of Specified Functions ke

16 Dec 2021 Workshop on (i) Annual Investigation and Compliance A& # FHARESERHAR)FEERE

2021412 H16H Report and (i) Interim Inspection Report for Chamber of R4 K (i) A 2R 5 ) T (B
Hong Kong Listed Companies

6 Jan 2022 Webinar on (i) Annual Investigation and Compliance  AFFAREHEIAS R IEH()FEH

202241 A6H Report and (i) Interim Inspection Report for ACCA Hong & R4 K (i) B 53R &5 N AR AR T ot &
Kong

9 Mar 2022 Press Briefing on the Engagement and Consultation on — #— & &5t S XM R KA HE

20223 A9H Further Reform of the Accounting Profession e

25 Mar 2022 Webinar on “Guidelines for Effective Audit Committees” A&BrtE=2eRREH(BITEZESH

202243 H25H for Hong Kong Institute of Directors BB IEIE S| AR TS

29 Mar 2022 Webinar on “Guidelines for Effective Audit Committees” A&BB LM AR ERFFBEEIZE

202243 F29H for Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies 2 ERCEIEIESI MG g

On-going Liaison meetings with regulators BB BB BN g

FHEEST e Sharing on common issues and fostering close e MBS HFERHE  BEEET

collaboration with SFC, HKEX, HKICPA and ICAC. MAgRERAZED ZHRAMEE
BRREEEEE
Publications H AR F42

On top of our outreach and engagement, we communicate key regulatory
issues and our latest developments with our stakeholders and the public
via our publications to shape behaviours of our regulatees and create
educational impacts. During the review period, we published 4 issues of our
e-news bulletins and 38 press releases. Monthly operations statistics about
complaints, investigations and enquiries covering the review period were also
published on our website.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Financial Reporting Council

Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of the Financial Reporting Council set
out on pages 80 to 109, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2022, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Financial Reporting Council as at 31 March 2022, and of its
results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with section 18(2) of the Financial Reporting Council
Ordinance (Cap. 588).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 19(1) of the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing standards.
My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
my report. | am independent of the Financial Reporting Council in accordance
with those standards, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with those standards. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Other information

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information included in the Financial
Reporting Council’s 2022 Annual Report, other than the financial statements
and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that
fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT
EIEERRS

Responsibilities of the Financial Reporting Council

for the financial statements

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and section 18(2) of the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Financial
Reporting Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Financial Reporting Council is
responsible for assessing its ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting.

The Financial Reporting Council is assisted by its Finance and Corporate
Affairs Committee in discharging its responsibilities for overseeing the financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Financial Reporting Council’s internal control;

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Financial Reporting Council;

- conclude on the appropriateness of the Financial Reporting Council’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Financial
Reporting Council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Financial Reporting Council to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify
during my audit.

Hildy Chan Audit Commission

Assistant Director of Audit 6th Floor, High Block

for Director of Audit Queensway Government Offices
66 Queensway

16 June 2022 Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B EE R

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME e PN
For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE2022F3/8318 HFE

(2RNAETTIIR)

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Twelve months

Eighteen months

ended ended
Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
BZE H=
202253A31H 202143H31H
ihE=s Lt+=@A 1EH\fEA
Income ON
Levy income BEWA 4 36,053,631 -
Grant income EBIA 5 67,663,613 108,007,390
Application fee income BB ARA 6 21,750 38,750
Recovery of costs of investigations FERK AU D] 6 1,243,573 1,566,601
Interest income FEUA 7 1,116,839 9,167,299
106,099,406 118,780,040
Expenditure S
Staff costs BT 8,9 (73,636,300) (84,897,221)
Non-executive directors’ emoluments ~ JEAfTE S & 9 (3,360,000) (5,700,000)
Premises expenses MEZ 10 (2,222,228) (3,238,796)
Corporate communications expenses HREER N 11 (841,313) (676,518)
Legal and professional fees FEEREEXER (1,671,818) (1,391,586)
Project expenses HEX W - (1,665,350)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGBHNE 15 (1,395,226) (2,780,517)
Depreciation and amortisation e s
— Property, plant and equipment — Wz - RE RN 14 (2,947,628) (3,300,656)
— Right-of-use assets —FRAEEE 15 (9,448,088) (12,354,156)
— Intangible asset —EmEEE 16 (196,000) (228,667)
Other operating expenses HEthiEs 12 (2,959,596) (2,546,573)
(98,678,197) (118,780,040)
Surplus and total comprehensive F/HRNERBR
income for the year/period FEFES= NN 7,421,209 -

The notes on pages 84 to 109 form part of these financial statements. F848 £109BE MM AN BT —29 °
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b E e
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BB 2
As at 31 March 2022 202293 A31H
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (&FELABTTLYITR)
31 March 31 March
Note 2022 2021
2022 20214
LiEsd 3A31H 3A31H
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BRAE KRN 14 11,261,613 11,470,032
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 21,969,678 36,376,160
Intangible asset mEE 16 555,333 751,333
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 33,786,624 48,597,525
Current assets MEVEE
Deposits, receivables and prepayments &% ~ JEUER M FBSF0E 17 26,553,530 5,507,719
Time deposits with original maturities REIEIRZ R =R A
over three months EHITE 18 225,250,000 313,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekReZEEY 19 56,128,621 18,497,172
Total current assets TBEEAE 307,932,151 337,004,891
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable, accruals and FETBRR - BT B AKX
other liabilities HEtaE 20 (9,248,115) (6,219,712
Deferred income EEUTA 21 (89,095,967) (77,998,000)
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 (15,719,820) (7,527,179
Total current liabilities REBELAE (114,063,902) (91,739,891)
Net current assets TBEEFEE 193,868,249 245,265,000
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income TEIEUTA 21 (160,683,898) (212,916,511)
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 (7,046,290) (28,442,538)
Provision for reinstatement cost 1BIR T2 A S 22 (3,690,000) (3,690,000)
Total non-current liabilities FnpEERE (171,420,188) (245,049,049)
Net assets EEFHE 56,234,685 48,813,476
Funds =k
General fund —REE 23 56,234,685 48,813,476
Total funds HmES 56,234,685 48,813,476

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 16 June 2022

20226 416 B EE = Bt MR T3

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP EX#IELT  REFES » APt
Chairman F/&

Mr Marek Grabowski 5 h%4E
Chief Executive Officer 7TIECAE#,

The notes on pages 84 to 109 form part of these financial statements. F84ET109E WM FE AAMBImEN—& D -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
For the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEeEEK
HE2022F3A31HILEE
(£EABTIIR)

General fund

—RES
At 1 October 2019 72019 10H1H 48,813,476
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the period HiN &R R RERE A -
At 31 March 2021 M2021F3A31H 48,813,476
At 1 April 2021 7202144 818 48,813,476
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year FRABRBEREIA 7,421,209
At 31 March 2022 1202253831 H 56,234,685
The notes on pages 84 to 109 form part of these financial statements. F848 E1090BE MM AAM BT —E5 °
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS ER R

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS HERER
For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE2022F3/8318 HFE

(2RNAETTIIR)

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Twelve months

Eighteen months

ended ended
Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
BZ HE
2022%3HA31H 202143H31H
BaE E+={@A 1B A
Cash flows from operating activities K& FEELEMNEERE
Surplus for the year/period FHRNERR 7,421,209 -
Adjustments for: FEIER :
Depreciation and amortisation s Ml 12,591,716 15,883,479
Interest income FILBWA (1,116,839) (9,167,299
Interest on lease liabilities HERENE 1,395,226 2,780,517
Loss on disposal of property, plant BEY  ®ER
and equipment B EE - 12,575
20,291,312 9,509,272
Changes in working capital: LBEE )
Increase in deposits, receivables Ze - BUERHRR
and prepayments TES FRIEIE AN (21,919,143) (623,035)
Increase in accounts payable, JERTBRSR - FERTEA K
accruals and other liabilities HAb & &N 1,999,168 3,057,894
Decrease in deferred income IRIEU AR D (41,129,646) (108,007,390)
Net cash outflow from operating RETHEENRS
activities T FRE (40,758,309) (96,063,259)
Cash flows from investing activities  REFHELENRESHRE
Payment for the purchase of property,  EBEWE¥E - :RELEMR
plant and equipment (1,709,974) (12,258,635)
Payment for the purchase of BEEEEERIA
intangible asset - (686,000)
Interest received BT & 1,990,171 9,288,205
Decrease in time deposits with original ~ RZ|EHEZ R =18 5 &)
maturities over three months FEEFEFORD 87,750,000 17,000,000
Net cash inflow from investing activities IR & FBEE MR SR EE 88,030,197 13,348,570
Cash flows from financing activites  BEITHEEMNRSRE
Lease payments HAERR (9,640,439) (11,957,568)
Net cash outflow from financing METBELENRESRE TR
activities (9,640,439) (11,957,568)
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand BHE&REBEESZEY
cash equivalents i, O FEE 37,631,449 (94,672,257)
Cash and cash equivalents at A2021F4 818201951081 H
1 April 2021/1 October 2019 HEERBASZEY 18,497,172 113,169,429
Cash and cash equivalents at 7202253831 H 2021538318
31 March 2022/31 March 2021 NWRERRESEEY 19 56,128,621 18,497,172
The notes on pages 84 to 109 form part of these financial statements. FBAE E100E MK AR IEIRETA—3 5 ©
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HE2022F3A31HILEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

84

General Information

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) was established in Hong Kong
in 2006 under the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588)
(FRCOQ). Its office address is 24th Floor and 43rd Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

The Legislative Council enacted the Financial Reporting Council
(Amendment) Ordinance 2019 (“Amendment Ordinance 2019”)
on 30 January 2019, which has changed the role of the FRC with
expanded functions effective from 1 October 2019 (“New Regime”). As
stipulated under the Amendment Ordinance 2019, the financial year end
of the FRC has been changed from 31 December to 31 March and the
first financial year under the Amendment Ordinance 2019 would be for
the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2021.

The current financial reporting period covers the 12 months from
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 and the comparative figures cover
18-month period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2021.

Principal Activities

As set out in the FRCO, the FRC is empowered to conduct
investigations concerning auditing and reporting irregularities by
auditors of entities listed in Hong Kong, and to make enquiries into non-
compliance with accounting requirements by listed entities in Hong
Kong. Under the Amendment Ordinance 2019, the FRC is a full-fledged
independent oversight body and is responsible for the inspection,
investigation and disciplinary functions with regard to public interest
entities (PIE) auditors, recognition of overseas auditors and the oversight
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ (HKICPA's)
performance of registration, setting of standards on professional
ethics, auditing and assurance, and setting of continuing professional
development requirements in relation to PIE auditors. Its power to make
enquiries into non-compliance with accounting requirements by listed
entities in Hong Kong continues.

On 8 June 2021, the Government announced a further reform of
the accounting profession and consequential changes to the FRC’s
functions under the FRCO. The FRC (Amendment) Bill 2021 (“Bill”)
was published on 16 July 2021 to further develop the FRC into a full-
fledged independent regulatory body for the accounting profession. The
Bill was passed by the Legislative Council on 22 October 2021 as the
Financial Reporting Council (Amendment) Ordinance 2021 (“Amendment
Ordinance 2021”).
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Principal Activities (continued)

Under the Amendment Ordinance 2021, certain regulatory powers
vested with the HKICPA will be transferred to the FRC and other
functions that will continue to be discharged by the HKICPA will be put
under the oversight of the FRC (“Further Reform”), as follows:

Empower the FRC to issue practising certificates to Certified Public
Accountants (CPAs) and to register CPA firms, corporate practices
and PIE auditors;

ii. Expand the FRC’s current powers of inspection, investigation
and discipline over PIE auditors to cover inspection of CPAs
(Practising) practising accountancy on their own account in their
own names, CPA firms and corporate practices (“Practice Units”)
and investigation and discipline of CPAs and Practice Units; and

ii. Expand the FRC’s oversight powers to cover the HKICPA’s
remaining functions of:

- ascertaining whether persons are qualified for registration as
CPAs by conducting examinations;

- registering CPAs;

— arranging for mutual or reciprocal recognition of accountants
with accountancy bodies outside Hong Kong;

- setting requirements for continuing professional development
(CPD) for CPAs;

- issuing or specifying standards on professional ethics, and
accounting, auditing and assurance practices, for CPAs; and

- providing training for qualifying for registration as, and CPD
of, CPAs.

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council (Transitional and Saving
Provisions and Consequential Amendments) Regulation (“Regulation”)
was tabled for negative vetting by the Legislative Council in May 2022.
The aim of the Regulation is to provide for the transitional legislation
arrangements for the Further Reform and consequential amendments
to other legislation. The majority of the provisions of the Amendment
Ordinance 2021 as enacted will become effective from 1 October 2022.
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(@)

(b)

(c)

Statement of Compliance and Basis of
Preparation of the Financial Statements

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, under the historical cost convention and are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the FRC.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the
application of IFRSs by the FRC. There are also no key assumptions
concerning the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
year.

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform to the
current year presentation of the financial statements.

Adoption of new/revised IFRSs
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the FRC did not adopt any new
or revised IFRSs.

The FRC has not applied any new or revised IFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current accounting period. Based on the assessment
undertaken to date, their adoption will not have any significant financial
impact on the FRC’s financial statements.
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4. Levy Income HEUWA
Twelve months Eighteen months
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
HZE BHE
2022%3H31H 202143H31H
t+=@A 1E+\EA
Transaction levy ?&%%{5 27,225,210 -
PIE levy NEFAERYE 7,924,196 -
PIE Auditor levy NP E BT E 904,225 -
36,053,631 -

Starting from 1 January 2022, the FRC is self-financing with funding
from levies payable by sellers and purchasers of securities, PIEs and PIE
Auditors for the existing PIE functions. A Government grant (note 5) had
been received to fund the operations of the FRC for the first 27 months
(i.e. up to 31 December 2021) after the implementation of the New
Regime, during which the new levies were exempted. With effect from
1 January 2022, the Government grant will only be used for Non-PIE
functions related to the Further Reform announced by the Government
on 8 June 2021 and eligible capital expenditure.

From 1 January 2022, the transaction levy and PIE levy are collected
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (SEHK) on behalf
of the FRC. The FRC recognises transaction levy when the leviable
transactions occur based on the consideration for the sale and purchase
by the seller and purchaser of securities each at a rate of 0.00015% of
the consideration. The transaction levy receivable is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income when the leviable transactions
occur. Amounts recognised are determined based on returns provided
to the FRC by SEHK. The FRC recognises the levy receivable from a
PIE for a calendar year when leviable, when it is probable that the levy
will be received and when a reliable estimate can be made. The PIE
levy is required under the FRCO to be calculated at 4.2% of the prepaid
annual listing fee as determined by the SEHK. A reliable estimate of the
levy receivable from a PIE can be made when it has been determined
by the SEHK and communicated to the FRC. The PIE levy income is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the calendar year to which it relates.
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BEEH  ARASEBRARFSERZ
BB EEEE - YIEERBRFHIE
Bk E27EA (BN EZE2021F12A31H)
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Levy Income (continued)

For calendar year 2022, the levy for Registered PIE Auditors will
be collected by the HKICPA on behalf of the FRC and the levy for
Recognized PIE Auditors will be collected directly by the FRC. The FRC
recognises the levy receivable from a PIE Auditor for a calendar year
when leviable, when it is probable that the levy will be received and
when a reliable estimate can be made. The levy receivable from a PIE
Auditor is required under the FRCO to be calculated based on:

the number of PIEs for which the PIE Auditor is carrying out,
as at 31 December of the preceding calendar year, a Specified
Engagement as defined in the FRCO, at HK$6,155 per
engagement (or a minimum levy of HK$2,000 if there are no
Specified Engagements); and

ii. 0.147% of the total remuneration paid to the PIE Auditor, in the
preceding calendar year, by the PIEs for which the PIE Auditor
carried out Specified Engagements.

A reliable estimate of the levy receivable from a PIE Auditor can be
made when a return of Specified Engagements and payments received
from PIEs in the calendar year has been received by the FRC from the
PIE Auditor. The PIE Auditor levy income is recognized in the statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the calendar year
to which it relates.
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Grant Income B A
Twelve months Eighteen months
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
HZE H=E
202293 831H 20213 A31H
t+=@A 1EH\fE A
Recognised as grant income R EEBRA 67,663,613 108,007,390

In August 2019, the FRC received a grant of HK$400 million from the
Government to be utilised, during the period of migration to the New
Regime, to cushion the FRC against short-term fluctuations in the levy
income, to fund one-off capital and non-recurrent expenses, to allow
the FRC to gradually expand its manpower taking into account its
actual operational needs, and to provide a buffer for other exigencies
of circumstances. There were no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attaching to the grant.
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Grant Income (continued)

Before the commencement of the levies on 1 January 2022, the grant
is recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial position
initially and is recognised as income on a systematic basis in the
statement of comprehensive income over the periods in which the FRC
recognises as expenses the related costs, including depreciation on
capital expenditure, for which the grant is intended to compensate.

Upon the commencement of the levies on 1 January 2022, the
depreciation on capital expenditure incurred was recognised as income
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments, for which the grant is intended to compensate.

Application Fee Income and Recovery of Costs

of Investigations

Application fee income is recognised at a point in time on completion of
the application service upon which an auditor is registered or recognised
as a PIE auditor by the FRC.

Recovery of costs of investigations is recognised once the HKICPA’s
disciplinary decision becomes finalised and received by the FRC.

Interest Income

Interest income was earned from time deposits and savings account.
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.
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Staff Costs =M%
Twelve months Eighteen months
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
BHZE BH=E
2022%F3H31H 202143 H31H
t+=@A 1B A
Salaries, variable pay and bonuses SN - R EBN S MIEAL 64,944,780 76,342,787
MPF contributions SREIMENTE SR 2,379,547 3,524,519
Staff recruitment expenses HHEEITWH 4,294,758 2,656,809
Medical and life insurance BB M AFRR 1,392,141 1,785,631
Staff training and development STHEIIREEER 160,699 278,173
Others Hih 464,375 309,302
73,636,300 84,897,221
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Staff Costs (continued)

Salaries, variable pay, bonuses and paid annual leave are accrued
in the period in which the employees rendered the associated
services. Bonuses are recognised when the FRC has a present legal
or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past
events and a reliable estimate can be made.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) scheme under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485) in Hong
Kong are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions. Contributions are made
based on 5 percent of the employees’ gross salaries. The assets of
the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the FRC, in an
independently administered fund. The employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF scheme, except for
the employer additional voluntary contributions, which are refunded to
the FRC if an employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully.

The above staff costs included the emoluments of the executive
directors and the CEO as stated in note 9.

The Government has launched the Job Creation Scheme (JCS)
under the Anti-epidemic Fund to create time-limited jobs to relieve
the unemployment situation due to the epidemic and anti-epidemic
measures. The FRC has received a subsidy of $1,587,879 from the
JCS during the year ended 31 March 2022 and the subsidy was applied
towards the payroll costs of additional staff for the time-limited positions
for the period from May 2021 to March 2022.
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9. Directors’ Emoluments 9. EEM=
Twelve months ended 31 March 2022
BZ20220F3A3181E+=18A
Directors’ Variable MPF
fee Salaries pay contributions Total
Fegallid
EEkn 4] FEHE DESMR ok
Executive Directors HTES
Marek Grabowski, CEO 57 TR - 4,122,504 679,000 20,501 4,822,005
Florence Wong ! TR - 1,862,500 429,923 114,621 2,407,044
- 5,985,004 1,108,923 135,122 7,229,049
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP, Chairman ~ &X# » REFIZE
AFat X8 840,000 - - - 840,000
Roger Best, MH, JP BmE - KEBEE - ATHL 240,000 - - - 240,000
Eugene Fung, SC BER - BRKEA 240,000 - - - 240,000
Stephen Hung FiEfE 240,000 - - = 240,000
Miranda Kwok I 240,000 - - - 240,000
Rosita Lee 1 240,000 - - - 240,000
Stephen Lee THE 240,000 - - - 240,000
Lin Yong, JP 2 OB+ KT 120,000 120,000
Keith Lui B o 240,000 - - - 240,000
Francis Siu e 240,000 - - - 240,000
Peter Wan FH 240,000 - - - 240,000
Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP ¢ BRI WEHEE - KM 120,000 - - - 120,000
Edward Yuen * (T Srn 120,000 - - - 120,000
3,360,000 - - - 3,360,000
Total directors’ emoluments BEEH 3,360,000 5,985,004 1,108,923 135,122 10,589,049
1 Resigned on 18 February 2022 1 7202242 A 18 HEF(E
2 Retired on 30 September 2021 2 R2021F9A30H T
3 Term expired on 30 September 2021 8 EHEARR 202149 A30H @i

Appointed with effect from 1 October 2021 R2021F10A1BER T
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9. Directors’ Emoluments (continued) 9. EEME®W®
Eighteen months ended 31 March 2021
HZ2021F3A31A LT NER
Directors’ Variable MPF
fee Salaries pay  contributions Total
@it
EFEEE o3| FEME  AREHR #E
Executive Directors BITES
Marek Grabowski, CEO ' 57 e - 1,939,350 - 96,968 2,036,318
Florence Wong? TER - 3,587,258 160,745 187,400 3,935,403
- 5,526,608 160,745 284,368 5,971,721
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Kelvin Wong, JP, Chairman PN e 1,260,000 - - - 1,260,000
Roger Best, MH, JP BmE - REEE - ATHT 360,000 - - - 360,000
Chan Tse Ching, BBS, JP BRI EHEE  ATHLS 240,000 - - - 240,000
Eugene Fung, SC SRR - ARKER 360,000 - - - 360,000
Wilson Fung ® g 240,000 - - - 240,000
Stephen Hung e 360,000 - - - 360,000
Miranda Kwok S 360,000 - - - 360,000
Rosita Lee = 360,000 - - - 360,000
Stephen Lee ZTHE 360,000 - - - 360,000
Lin Yong, JP R - K@t 360,000 - - - 360,000
Keith Lui * EXChin 120,000 - - - 120,000
Francis Siu BER 360,000 - - - 360,000
Peter Wan FiRE 360,000 - - - 360,000
Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP ERE  WEAER - KTt 360,000 - - - 360,000
Eirene Yeung oA 240,000 - - - 240,000
5,700,000 - - - 5,700,000
Total directors’ emoluments BEEME 5,700,000 5,526,608 160,745 284,368 11,671,721
1 Appointed with effect from 12 October 2020 1 2020510 A 12B - EE
2 Appointed with effect from 6 December 2019 2 PR2019F 12 6HEZR(T
3 Term expired on 30 September 2020 E FEEFA 202059 A30HE
4 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2020 4 PR2020F10A1BEER T
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10. Premises Expenses

11.
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Rates, management fees and
air-conditioning charge

Others

10. MEXZH
Twelve months Eighteen months
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
HZE BHE
2022%3H31H 2021%3A31H
t+=@A 1E+\EA
1,840,442 2,798,796
381,786 440,000
2,222,228 3,238,796

The FRC entered into lease agreements in July 2019 and February 2022
for its office at the Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong. The non-cancellable periods of the leases are respectively from
1 September 2019 to 31 August 2023 and from 1 February 2022 to
31 August 2023, each with an option to renew a further term of two
years and all the lease payments are fixed. The February 2022 lease is
for additional space to meet operational need.

Corporate Communications Expenses

HHERBLEREBEFRER183IHA
MR LEIAED BIR2019F 7 A &20224F
AR HEWHZE - TR EEE & BE
SR A201969 A1 HE202348A31H K
2022F2 A1HE2023F8A31H » &ML
ERENMT - IEHENZHAEEN
3R e 202262 AWML AR EAR I AR
MEEEFRE -

1. BBEH

Twelve months

Eighteen months

ended ended

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

BZE HE

20224 3H31H 202143H31H

LE+={EA 1E+\EA

Promotion and public education WENAEHE 168,554 204,989
Events JEED 116,135 139,529
Publications Hi i F#) 506,677 242,400
Others Hith 49,947 89,600
841,313 676,518
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12.

13.

Other Operating Expenses

12. HEEES H

Twelve months

Eighteen months

ended ended

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

BZE H=E

2022%3H31H 202143H31H

Lt+=@A 1E+\EA

Conferences and duty visits SELEREA - 184,910
Professional liability insurance EEETRR 27,337 40,863
Office equipment and furniture expensed PR R &ME M REF X 4,251 23,473
Relocation expenses mBHAY - 54,702
Information and systems services RIS ES v 1,751,989 1,155,473
Printing, stationery and other expenses TEN » XA RHEMESY 1,176,019 1,087,152
2,959,596 2,546,573

In accordance with section 19 of the FRCO, the financial statements of
the FRC are audited by the Director of Audit. No fee is charged for this

service.

Taxation

Pursuant to section 16 of the FRCO, the FRC is exempt from taxation

under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112).

RIBCHTEE IR BIRD) F1915 - MIBERD
M BRRMBFBERARRZ  EPX

EWEEAIRSER

13. B8

RIBCHTEE IR B IRD) F165F - MIBERD
E#HemBARERRBEERND (F1128) 8

o
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y3 ~ BRERBIM
Office
furniture Other office Leasehold
and fixtures Computers equipment improvements Total
NS Hith HE

BRAREE Bl WAERE MEHRE BE
Cost BA
At 1 October 2019 72019107 1H 600,374 1,349,566 419,150 1,869,864 4,238,954
Additions BA 2,379,001 3,500,391 679,390 5,908,833 12,467,615
Disposal BE (685,974) (305,556) (38,069) - (929,599)
At 31 March 2021 720213 A31H 2,393,401 4,544,401 1,060,471 7,778,697 15,776,970
At 1 April 2021 202154 A1H 2,393,401 4,544,401 1,060,471 7,778,697 15,776,970
Additions BA 1,875,000 191,097 71,000 602,112 2,739,209
Disposal RBE - - - - -
At 31 March 2022 M20223A31H 4,268,401 4,735,498 1,131,471 8,380,809 18,516,179
Accumulated depreciation g
At 1 October 2019 H2019E10A18 (596,119) (974,669) (77,589) - (1,648,376)
Charge for the period RS (316,918 (1,305,078) (172,086)  (1,780,604)  (3,575,586)
Written back on disposal REREE 582,106 305,556 29,362 - 917,024
At 31 March 2021 Ho0214E3A31H (330,931)  (1,974,191) (221212)  (1780,604)  (4,306,938)
At 1 April 2021 R2021%F4A1H (330,931) (1,974,191) (221,212) (1,780,604) (4,306,938)
Charge for the year S (237,000)  (912,417)  (156,482)  (1,640,820)  (2,947,628)
Written back on disposal REREE - - - - -
At 31 March 2022 202263 A31 A (568,831)  (2,886,608)  (377,694)  (3421,433)  (7,254,566)
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2022 R20223A31H 3,699,570 1,848,890 753,777 4,959,376 11,261,613
At 31 March 2021 #20214F3A31H 2,062,470 2,570,210 839,259 5,998,093 11,470,032
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except that items costing
less than $5,000 are expensed when incurred. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment over its estimated useful
life after considering its estimated residual value. The respective useful
lives are as follows:

Office furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computers 3 years
Other office equipment 7 years

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease term

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at the reporting date.

In February 2022, the FRC changed its estimate of the useful life of
the leasehold improvements from 6 years to 4 years (note 15). The net
book value of the leasehold improvements as of 1 February 2022 will be
depreciated evenly over the revised remaining useful life of 19 months.

Other office furniture and fixtures and leasehold improvements consist
of expenditure of capital projects in the amounts of $1,875,000 and
$602,112 respectively, which were not completed and hence were not
subject to depreciation as at 31 March 2022. Depreciation of these
assets commenced after the completion of the projects in May 2022.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain
or loss arising from the derecognition is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in
which the asset is derecognised.

At the reporting date, the FRC assesses whether there is any indication
that an item of property, plant and equipment may be impaired or a
previously recognised impairment loss no longer exists or may have
decreased. Following this year’s review, no impairment loss has been
recognised (2021: nil).
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HRREARIH - ¥ - REREMIER
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FEDRERYE - REREHAR 2 b5t
R L EE IR - UERE
RS ERAT HEY - REANTERASES
o

WAERARKE 104F
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RN 7F
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BE AEASGRAETEEZIRNERER
HID TR - RMELEEHE

M2022F2R  WKEmRBRSHEEME
HEMGTAIFEASTH6FEE B4F
(Bi7E15) » PR2022F2 1AM EMEE
EERmMFESIRCETR T A ERASHN19
EREHENE -

HMBAEZEEREERHEEMERE
BIEEARERE XS H1,875,0007T &
602,11270 * R EZFIE B HMARTTH + R
2022F 3 A31HI KRFTRITE - ZZEEMN
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15. Leases

The leases for the FRC office (note 10) are recognised as right-of-use
assets with corresponding liabilities recognised at the date at which the
leased asset was available for use by the FRC.

The lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the FRC’s incremental borrowing rate
at the commencement date. Lease payments are allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income over the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

At the commencement date of the September 2019 lease, the FRC
assessed that it was reasonably certain to exercise the option to
extend the lease by two years at the end of the non-cancellable
period of the lease and the lease term was determined to be 6 years.
In February 2022, the FRC considered its options for extending its
office premises to accommodate an anticipated increase in staff
numbers over the coming years. In light of this, the FRC assessed that
it was no longer reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend
the lease, revised the lease term to 4 years, remeasured the lease
liability and made a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use asset. The incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease was
4.625% at the commencement date and 4.5% at the remeasurement
date (1 February 2022). The effect of the remeasurement of the
remaining lease liability was to reduce the liability by $15,983,804,
with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset. The cost of
reinstatement of the leased premises at the end of the lease term was
also capitalised as part of the cost of right-of-use asset (note 22).

At the commencement date of the February 2022 lease, the FRC
assessed that it was not reasonably certain to exercise the option to
extend the lease by two years at the end of the non-cancellable period
of the lease and the lease term was determined to be 19 months. The
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease at the commencement
date was 4.5%.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ER R

15. HE

MM AERNTELY (10 REEEE A #8F
BERBDEDE AREERREAREE -
YiEREBEAE -

HER GRS THERENERENE - X%
s BB S E R R IE 8 B E M KRR -
HEFEGNLEEME EEMBKAE - B
BARTEER B4R AR - Ut E
EHE A EERNE BN E - EREER
ERHEBRERERINE -

201959 AMMAFHMG A - MEERRB
ZEEE - RARAEREEN T O B
EREBTEREESHECRFRETH
HAABHE - R20224 28 - MIERBRZE
HIRERNAEMENBIZUEN AR EEE
HE MM B T AR - BERIL - BKERS
KGR RATBAEBETEITERERT
RHEE B R4F  SHEHER
EREEREREEEFELERAE - 16
HBEHEARNEEHENEEEERNRA
4.625% M EHETE BH (202292 A1H)
545% B EHTHERENTEAA
B 115,983,8047T - RIS A EEE
HRERE AR TASEHEYENER
TIRRATFENMEBEREEERADH—E
7 (fizE22) o

H2022F2 AMMEERB AR - MEERD
KEEE - RATAAEEE N AR A E
HrgR{TEEEEBSHEER2FRETE
FEA190EA - KRR AMERAREEEE
RIS EEEFERL5% o
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15. Leases (continued) 15. HE (@)

Buildings
Right-of-use assets FAEEE BT
Cost 5%
At 1 October 2019 R2019F10A1H 49,416,658
Additions A -
At 31 March 2021 R2021F3HA31H 49,416,658
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4/81H 49,416,658
Additions BA 11,025,410
Adjustment upon reassessment of lease liability EFFEHEEERAR (15,983,804)
At 31 March 2022 202293 H31H 44,458,264
Accumulated depreciation ZEtInE
At 1 October 2019 2019 10A1H (686,342)
Charge for the period HRS T (12,354,156)
At 31 March 2021 M20214F3A31H (13,040,498)
At 1 April 2021 202144 81 H (13,040,498)
Charge for the year FAZH (9,448,088)
At 31 March 2022 1202263831 H (22,488,586)
Net book value BREFE
At 31 March 2022 R202253H31H 21,969,678
At 31 March 2021 7202193 A31H 36,376,160
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15. Leases (continued) 15. HE (@)
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3H31H 3A31H
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current mE 15,719,820 7,527,179
Non-current JERE 7,046,290 28,442,538
22,766,110 35,969,717
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
3A31H 3H31H
Maturity profile of lease liabilities HEEBEUNRMERERERE

(contractual undiscounted cash flows):  FYZEIEFAAR -
— Within 12 months —12{@ AR 16,363,058 8,968,176
— After 12 months but within 24 months —1218 B 2B~ EEB241E8 A 7,098,050 8,968,176
— After 24 months but within 60 months — 2418 B 1B~ 838601E A - 21,673,092
— After 60 months —601E A% - -
23,461,108 39,609,444

Rent free period has been taken into account in the maturity profile of

the lease liabilities.

Twelve months

SEHE LR AHERBENIENOR

Eighteen months

ended ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
HZE H=E
2022 3H31H 20213 A31H
IE+Z@A 1+ AEA
Interest on lease liabilities HESEFNE (1,395,226) (2,780,517)
Expense relating to leases of HEREEEENERHEX
low-value assets (2,000) (14,622)
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15. Leases (continued) 15.
Changes in the lease liabilities and the reconciliation of the liabilities

arising from financing activities:

ME @)
HEEBEEYRELEMAGHNAEY
BR :

Lease liabilities

HeEas

At 1 October 2019 R2019F10A1H 45,146,768
Non-cash changes: JEIR 4 &

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 2,780,517
Financing cash flows: BMERERE

Lease payments HAERR (11,957,568)
At 31 March 2021 7202143 A31H 35,969,717
At 1 April 2021 R20214%4 518 35,969,717
Non-cash changes: IR EE -

Increase in lease liability relating to new lease EEFHENHESEEM 11,025,410

Adjustment upon reassessment of lease liability EFTEHERER AR (15,983,804)

Interest on lease liabilities HEaERNE 1,395,226
Financing cash flows: RMERESRE

Lease payments MENR (9,640,439)
At 31 March 2022 7202293 831H 22,766,110
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16. Intangible Asset 16. B EE
Computer
software
ES SIS

Cost A
At 1 October 2019 R2019510A18 882,000
Additions A 98,000
At 31 March 2021 R20214E3A318 980,000
At 1 April 2021 R20215F4 818 980,000
Additions A -
At 31 March 2022 72022537315 980,000
Accumulated amortisation ZiH
At 1 October 2019 201910818 -
Charge for the period A (228,667)
At 31 March 2021 M20215E3A318 (228,667)
At 1 April 2021 M20215E4 518 (228,667)
Charge for the year FAZH (196,000)
At 31 March 2022 1202263831 H (424,667)
Net book value BRMENFE
At 31 March 2022 1202263531 H 555,333
At 31 March 2021 20213 H31H 751,333

This represents the development cost of a case management system,

which was available for use from February 2020.

Intangible asset is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment loss, if any. Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line
basis to write off the cost of the case management system over its
estimated useful life of 5 years after considering its estimated residual
value. Amortisation commences when the case management system is

available for use.

IARGEERFNRABRAEA  ZEERS
F20204F 2 AR Al A -

SR R AR B B RORL R 2 (0
B) SRR - ST IR E R R RS F Ay fEEt Al
[EREGLEBRGHRER - UERAR
HHRA AT - BHARHERRAA
[T -
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16. Intangible Asset (continued)

16. BILEE (8)

Residual value, useful life and amortisation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at the reporting date.

At the reporting date, the FRC assesses whether there is any indication
that an item of intangible asset may be impaired or a previously
recognised impairment loss no longer exists or may have decreased.
Following this year’s review, no impairment loss has been recognised

BE - AEASHREBHETEEINERER
EETRE - RIELEERE -

K& R - MBERBERE HRER
DRBETELEERR LRAE @ SUBER
REBEEIREIBFERELRD -
RAFERERNE  RAERETARERE

(2021: nil.

17. Deposits, Receivables and Prepayments

(20214F « 48) o

17. 8% ~ BYERR R AN TR

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

2022 20214

3A31H 3H31H

Deposits b 5,337,417 2,749,904

Accounts receivable (financial asset) JEUER R (ERMEE) - 90,102

Accounts receivable (non-financial asset)  FEUBE GES R EE) 17,904,232 -

Interest receivable JEU T B, 224,318 1,097,650
Prepayments TEFRIE

~ Medical and life insurance —BRERAFRRE 346,332 352,734

— Staff benefits —8TI%ER 47,276 -

— Professional liability insurance —EEEFRR - 19,629

— Others —EAfth 2,693,955 1,197,700

26,553,530 5,507,719

The accounts receivable (non-financial asset) relate to transaction levy,

FEYERR GFEREE) BXHEE - ARF

PIE levy and government subsidy. FRC does not provide an ageing
analysis of accounts receivable for transaction levy and government
subsidy as there was no material overdue balance as at 31 March 2022.

Deposits as at 31 March 2022 mainly represent refundable rental
deposit.
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18. Time Deposits with Original Maturities Over 18. REIFIHZ = A NEHF
Three Months %’\
Time deposits with original maturities over three months carried REBEZR=EANESREFER  KEE

fixed interest rates ranging from 0.025% to 0.81% (2021: 0.13% to
0.89%) per annum. The balances outstanding at 31 March 2022 and
31 March 2021 had maturities less than 12 months from the reporting

iﬂ% H0.025%Z0.81%5t /2 (20214 -

0.13%%0.89%)

o 732022493 531 H 2021

FIAAMAEHRNRE A H12MEA "2

date. By o
19. Cash and Cash Equivalents 19. RE KRR EEY
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20225 20214
3A31H 3H31H
Cash on hand FHERS 2,898 989
Current accounts Y ERHTER 2,298,739 540,529
Savings account BEFX 9,826,984 6,955,654
Time deposits with original maturities JRENER B R B = (& A 80 E 2

within three months T 44,000,000 11,000,000
56,128,621 18,497,172

The effective interest rates on the bank balances and the short-term
time deposits at 31 March 2022 was 0.01% to 0.55% (2021: 0.1%) per

M202253A318 - SRITAB MG HTEHE
THEBRFEFEA0.01%=20.55% (2021

annum. £ :01%) o

20. Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other 20. EERRX ~ ESTER KR HEME
Liabilities &

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3HA31H 3HA31H
Accounts payable and accruals JERTBRF BT E 9,246,839 6,219,492
Contract liabilities — receipts in advance ARAEE-EkEE 1,276 220
9,248,115 6,219,712

Receipts in advance represent the application fee income received in
advance for the recognition of overseas auditors of PIE under the New
Regime.

BUYSREERHHIE T

AARHmERE

FEOMZERAM i FE U ) R %iﬁ%ﬂﬁl)& °

BN ERHFERRALBENT —ERE 0
RBRWA - EFHET - FFEEHURAR
AR RIS R R AN o

The balance of the application fee income received will be recognised
as revenue in the next reporting period. Under the New Regime, the
application fee income is recognised as revenue when the application
service is transferred.
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20. Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other

21.

Liabilities (continued)

The balances of receipts in advance above represent the aggregate

20. AR

CERTEAKAEME

El (,E)

it FEW IR AR IR IR E B HI OB T R

amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations 1T (MO BT MENEANR HERE
that are unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) at the reporting date. B o
Deferred Income IEFEUT A
Twelve months Eighteen months
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
HE #H=
2022%F3H31H 202143 H31H
Lt+—{EA Jis AN D!
At 1 April 2021/1 October 2019 R2021F4/818
20194F10A1H 290,909,511 398,916,901
PIE levy income for 2022 2022 F NARF B BREB WA 31,745,486 -
PIE auditor levy income for 2022 2022F N EBH = B GEIZ AN
HBRA 3,616,902 -
Recognised as grant income in the EREBEN,/HNEBRA
year/period (67,663,613) (108,007,390)
Recognised as PIE levy income in the WREBFN, BANRRHS
year/period ERAERA (7,924,196) -
Recognised as PIE auditor levy income WRBFEN, AR RHNE
in the year/period FRZEREERA (904,225) -
At 31 March 2022/31 March 2021 R2022F3A31H
202143 A31H 249,779,865 290,909,511
Less: Amount estimated to be recognised & : fh TSR —F WIERARA
as income within one year Enj =t (89,095,967) (77,993,000)
Amount classified under non-current NERERBEESE
liabilities 160,683,898 212,916,511
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Deferred Income (continued) 21. LW A (&)
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3H31H 3A31H
Representing: RE*
Current ED 89,095,967 77,993,000
Non-current IERED 160,683,898 212,916,511
249,779,865 290,909,511
Provision for Reinstatement Cost 22, BER TR A E
In accordance with the lease agreement of 24th Floor, Hopewell RIEA P L24ERE S - MISERSE

Centre, the FRC is required to restore the office premises to the original
condition at the end of the lease term. A provision has been recognised
for the estimated expenditure. The cost has been capitalised as part of
the cost of the related right-of-use asset which is depreciated over the
lease term (note 15).

Funds
General fund represents the operating surplus of the FRC’s recurrent
funding.

REHTERERAEERERANMR -

WE s EbE S B E LA -

BRRADIE

RAEEREEERAN —MAOBTERN -
W B RFHRITE (H5E15) -

23. E%

—RESVEVBEGRREEEESNEE

BER o
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24. Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as

24. €T A

EReRMTANKmSEN N

follows:
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3A31H 3A31H
Financial assets EREE
At amortised cost: IR SR AT B
Deposits, accounts receivable (financial B BRER(ERERE)
asset) and interest receivable N U B 5,561,735 3,937,656
Time deposits with original maturities REBIEZ R =AY
over three months TEBER 225,250,000 313,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents B MIREEEY 56,128,621 18,497,172
286,940,356 335,434,828
Financial liabilities Ea= =L
At amortised cost: IR SR AT B
Accounts payable and accruals FERARF R FEET B A 9,246,839 6,219,492
Lease liabilities HEAE
- Current —nEp 15,719,820 7,527,179
— Non-current —3EME 7,046,290 28,442,538
32,012,949 42,189,209

The carrying amounts of the FRC’s financial assets and financial liabilities
approximate their fair values as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the FRC becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of an instrument. They are initially measured at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method
except for lease liabilities as stated in note 15. No transaction costs

have been incurred.

MENREE -
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24. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The objective of holding financial assets is to collect contractual cash
flows, which are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. The recognition of a loss allowance for
expected credit losses on a financial asset measured at amortised cost is
based on the probability of default upon initial recognition and on-going
assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. The FRC assesses whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of
default occurring on the financial asset at the reporting date with the risk
of default at the date of initial recognition. Each financial asset is assessed
on an individual basis and the FRC takes into account both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

No provision for impairment loss for the financial assets was made at
31 March 2022 as the financial assets were considered to be of low
credit risk and the expected credit losses of these financial assets was
minimal.

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired or the FRC has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the relevant obligation is
discharged, is cancelled or expires.
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24. € T H (%)

THEE

RETREENENTURDERRERE -
HZEREREBERBENAE RREREHA
B o RIEHERRRES BRE LN TG
REFBEFASHMEOTEN - SAERE
EAE AT ENTAREEBERAEE
B - MBESRREBHEREENRER
i A B ) L P B A S e AR B AR AR I 4
MEBRETTHE - A S EBEER(E R
BB VIATER AR R D REEN - BEESR
BEOBEFETIHE  UBERBEEESE
MAISEMEEREHER  BRAFLRKL
ERLEBSNASAE A A EF AT

R2022F3H31H » WERSMEEMER
Ktk DESREEREAEZHRR
BREZESREENTESEEBEMTE
e
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25. Financial Risks

(@)

(b)

Credit risk

The FRC’s credit risk is primarily attributable to deposits, accounts
receivable (financial asset) and interest receivable, time deposits and
other bank balances.

The Board approved an investment policy which, subject to other limits,
only allows the FRC to place deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong
having regard to their credit rating. Those funds are deposited with
banks that are rated P-1 by Moody’s or A-1 by S&P. The policy also
limits the amount placed with each bank and the maximum duration the
deposit is placed, and specifies the minimum number of banks to be
placed at any time in order to manage its credit risk.

The portfolio of deposits is managed and monitored to ensure it meets
the investment policy with monthly reports submitted to the Finance and
Corporate Affairs Committee and bi-monthly reports to the Board. As a
result, the FRC is not exposed to significant credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the
financial assets as set out in the statement of financial position.

While other financial assets are subject to the impairment requirements,
the FRC has estimated that their expected credit losses are minimal and
considers that no loss allowance is required.

Liquidity risk

The FRC has a strong cash position and therefore has a very low level
of liquidity risk. The FRC maintains sufficient levels of cash and cash
equivalents and manages its working capital by carefully reviewing
forecasts on a regular basis. All financial liabilities except lease liabilities
were due to be repaid within three months (2021: three months) from
the reporting date. The maturity profile of the lease liabilities is disclosed
in note 15.
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25.

(c)

26.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS ER R

Financial Risks (continued) 25. Rk ()
Market risk (c) MmZEk
Currency risk R
The FRC receives its funding and settles its expenses in Hong Kong WBERDE WA R L /BT - M
dollars. Its financial assets and financial liabilities are all denominated in EeMEERSRBEAHUNBTAEN -
Hong Kong dollars. Hence, the FRC is not exposed to any currency risk. 1L B 765 B R /B N SR AR AT (R B R ©
Interest rate risk FIZEm f
The FRC’s interest bearing assets mainly comprise funds placed in time VBERRHBNEEEXZERETEFEM
deposits with fixed interest rates. The FRC is subject to interest rate risk TEHFR - EMisHERKEE - MISERDE
where a volatile market exists. This risk is managed by having several HEMERRE - WKEGRREBHEES TE
short term deposits. The FRC’s exposure to interest rate risk is limited TR SR A B IR R R fy o B T TE ¥ /=) T B A A
and therefore no sensitivity analysis on such risk has been prepared. RERAR - B AR b S R TRk
JEDHT ©
Capital Commitments 26. EINESE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2022 not provided for in 72022F3A31H + ARFE %I A1E LB
the financial statements were as follows: HHAREEAAZDT -
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20225 20214F
3H31H 3H31H
Contracted for SEES 2,084,000 143,000
Authorised but not contracted for BEERRETL 900,000 3,260,000
2,984,000 3,403,000
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ZEEREEEKE

Honorary Advisory Panel
=

The function of the Honorary Advisers is to advise the FRC, including its committees and staff, with respect to any matter referred to
the Honorary Advisers by the FRC. The panel comprises highly respected individuals with a wide spectrum of professional expertise
who provide their advice and contributions to the FRC at the committee level. By leveraging on their wealth of experience, the FRC
has been able to discharge our statutory duties as an effective independent auditor regulator of Hong Kong.

LHEBERAENEMHYFEERRENNFE  MMBERR(BREZEGIEDRAER - 2 EBHERBEARZEXRANH
Mg EEARK o BHEMMAEENKR  PBERRAIAGROETRMAERE BB I AZ AN E S #IB R EEBAE -

Ms Melissa Brown

Ms Brown is a Partner at Daobridge Capital, a private investment advisory firm, where she
focuses on opportunities linked to sustainable investments in Asian markets. She also works
with organizations focused on energy transition analytics and the Asian Corporate Governance
Association. She is a member of the SFC Takeovers Panel and the HKEX Listing Review Committee.
She has previously served as a member of the HKEX Listing Committee, as a government-appointed
lay council member of the Hong Kong Institute of CPAs, and on the UN PRI Advisory Council.

Melissa BrownZ

From 2019-10-01 Brown#Z + 2 — 5K i AR & #5382 FlDaobridge Capitalf)& B A » EE RIS N5 Al B EHE
Appointment expires RS - i R BT REERER DTAEE MM AR E A S AE - ERLSREREHE
on 2023-09-50 BEMBEBRGLTEZRZESKE - W EEIFEIIHMLETEZEEKE - EBSTIIAEHK
ERIER + 2019-10-01 FHIMHE TG EINKEBURKABEPREBREZEEKE -

TEfE# - 2023-09-30

Dr Eva Chan

Dr Chan has more than 25 years of financial and management experience and has been senior
executives of various listed companies in Hong Kong. She is the Head of Investor Relations of C C
Land Holdings Limited. Dr Chan is an independent Non-Executive Director of Capital Environment
Holdings Limited and Xtep International Holdings Limited and an Adjunct Professor in the School of
Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Dr Chan is the Founding Chairman of Hong Kong Investor Relations Association. She obtained a
DBA degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

From 2019-10-01

Appointment expires PRAFEEE

on 2023-09-30 RELHEGRBEFNMBEMERLR  BEEEEZHALTARNGRERAE  BATRE
FAIER - 2019-10-01 TR AR ATNIREEBEREE - RISLRHEAIREZERER AR RELEBIERER A TR TE
R 2023-09-30 SIEBMITES - WARABBEBEIAREGH Re SR NRBHE -

RELTEEEREEFERHSNENER  TREFEBIRERETHERELEMN -
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From 2021-10-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-09-30

AR : 2021-10-01
AR+ 2023-09-30

From 2019-04-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-03-31

G R - 2019-04-01
EHIE W - 2023-03-31

From 2021-10-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-09-30

ERFIER + 2021-10-01
ERGE R < 2023-09-30

MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS
ZEERZEENRE

Dr Mike Chen

Dr Chen is a member of the Executive Committee of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited
and the CEO of China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch. He is also the Vice President
of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Council Member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. He possesses over 20 years of banking experience and leadership roles globally and in
the Greater China region. Dr Chen had been the Deputy Department Head (Head Office level) and
the Assistant CEO of a provincial branch of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (ICBC),
and the Managing Director and Country Head at the Royal Bank of Canada in China.

BRAMREE =

RELRPENAKEBRARTHITZEE LB RTEARITRADITIIR « WRAKERBRT
PeRleRk CLERAFPEFELEE MELEZBRMAPELRNORITENESERRETIFE
20%F - ARIBRE - ABEPEEE - RELBEPHIERTETHFARES1TEE - NERE
RRITHEBERFRIERDTTITR °

Mr Andrew Chen

Mr Chen is the Executive Partner of ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Ltd and is the former President of The
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors in 2018 and continues to be the council member of
the Society.

RAERTELESHMEFAERARAPITABA - tBR2018FHEIRBEAGHAIAEE
R BEEZeEE -

Mr Michael Cheng

Mr Cheng is the former Head of Government Affairs & Public Relations, APAC of Invesco Hong
Kong Limited. He was previously MSCI Hong Kong Limited’s Executive Director of ESG Research
and led their APAC corporate governance research. He has also held senior positions at Hong Kong
Exchanges & Clearing Limited, Securities and Futures Commission, China International Capital
Corporation and the Asian Corporate Governance Association. He is a Fellow Member of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong.

L=t pited

BELBERIBREERARAATABRBFEE R AKBEIE - b L EMSCI ESGHI T BT
B FEERTARMNDEEGHTE - MABEERMN  #BEE P2ARNEMNATRERE
MEERN - MEEBRSFLREZENERGEULBERMENEE -
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ZEEREEERE

From 2021-10-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-09-30

FRER - 2021-10-01
FEifE - 2023-09-30

From 2021-04-15
Appointment expires

on 2023-04-14

FRFZER © 2021-04-15
ERGJE R 2023-04-14

Ms Ivy Cheung

Ms Cheung is the Managing Partner and Head of Audit with KPMG, Hong Kong. She has over 30
years of experience in auditing and advising companies listed on Hong Kong and overseas stock
exchanges. She is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA). She was the Past President of the HKICPA in 2016. She currently serves as member
of various public service committees, including the Independent Commission on Remuneration for
Members of the District Councils of the HKSAR, the Standing Committee on Disciplined Services
Salaries and Conditions of Service and the Transport Advisory Committee. She is also a board
member of the Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited, Hong Kong Genome Institute
and the Insurance Authority.

RARZ T

RELTREFHEEBNNATEBAREIRBEE - AEDE - PEABMEIFEREBN LTA
AIREETRE I EEAEA0FLR - MEEESHMAGNERSE - TR2016FEEIZES
K wBAEEZEA/AKXRBZEGNKE  EFEFITRERASHEFMELZES &£
REBERFHNRBEHEELREGNBENAZTE S - RXTIRETEREEEEERAGF - &8
EREMEARRBREERNESENKE -

Dr Christine Chow

Dr Chow is the global Head of Stewardship at HSBC Asset Management and a Board Member
of HSBC Asset Management UK Limited. Prior to joining HSBC, she was an executive director
in charge of ESG advisory and integration at IHS Markit and the global head of technology, Asia
and emerging markets at Federated Hermes EOS. She has 25 years’ experience in investment
management, research & consulting, with a focus on technology and sustainability. She is a Board
Member of the International Corporate Governance Network (ICGN), an organization led by investors
responsible for assets under management in excess of $US 59 trillion from over 39 countries and
territories.

AEEL

AETRAELSRTEEEEHFFrELERELEEETEEER/RNE - MAELZH - #2IHS
Markitf)HIfTE S - BEERE - @ NEABRNE S IR ¢ WitFederated Hermes EOSE &
EEONEPEFETE - thEREEE - MIRNERAEEE25THESR - ETREHRMAH
BERE - thRERARIAEBBNEESNE @ ZABH B EEERAHMABIEER MMt R H) B
BEOBEBETEEMNREEES -
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From 2021-02-10
Appointment expires

on 2023-02-09

FEIIER © 2021-02-10
FHfE ) : 2023-02-09

From 2019-04-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-03-31

FRER + 2019-04-01
EA W - 2023-03-31

MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS
ZEEREEEKE

Mr Fox Chu

Mr Fox Chu is a Partner in McKinsey & Company in Hong Kong, serving clients across consumer,
logistics and infrastructure sectors. Mr Chu has advised clients on topics across policy reform,
growth strategy, M&A, operations turnaround and new business building in Greater China,
Southeast Asia, Sub-continents and Middle East.

RREKE

SREEERTESBBERRRNEBA  RBNEE - MRANERRERENTS - RELZGHK
IR - REE - RKEMPRENOBRRNE  EREE 0 E28NREBERETE
A% PR AR o

Mr Addison Everett

Mr Everett has over 30 years of professional experience with PwC in China — Beijing and Hong
Kong SAR - and other countries/regions. His experience includes serving as Chief Risk Officer and
providing auditing, advisory and capital markets services. He also has experience leading business
and functional units within PwC.

REEKE

MG RERRUKETEHEABAS0FMERRELR - TIFAE R RME B RITT
Bl - AREMERNKMER - tEERRBICGENERERE - BEE - KAMEATHRE -
WA L =R LBGENBP R MR BIFT M B E K5 -
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ZEEREEERE

From 2020-10-06
Appointment expires

on 2022-10-05

FEIIE R - 2020-10-06
EEE W - 2022-10-05

From 2019-10-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-09-30
EAIIER : 2019-10-01
& - 2023-09-30

Ms Grace Hui

Ms Hui has over 20 years of banking and finance experience. From 2013 to early 2022, Ms Hui
was with Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEX) during which she served as Chief
Operating Officer of its Listing Division until early 2020 when she initiated and established HKEX's
green and sustainable finance department and HKEX's STAGE. Prior to HKEX, Ms Hui was with
UBS in various roles including Chief of Staff and Global Chief Operating Officer of its Legal &
Compliance Department. Before that, Ms Hui practised law with Reed Smith Richards Butler. Ms
Hui is @ member of both the Regulatory Oversight Board and the Sustainability Committee of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

EiRcibiikedun

HFLZLHERRB0OENRITRERITERR  2013FEF2022F 7] » AL TENEBLH MEEFR
ERAF (BERGIET LM EEAERLE  WE020FMERT KX IEORAIFERRES
BhEFY - WA T BB A BERGE R SHSTAGE) » EIMABTEBR S 2R LT EHEmRR
BIZERE  SREAIFESBTONAETETMEREELEAE o Ibh X1+ ZfEReed
Smith Richards Butlerfis - e BB QM A BEXEEEBZEQMAFEREZETHK

=
B o

Ms Ashley Khoo

Ms Khoo, CFA, CPA, is an asset management and investment banking professional with
comprehensive experience in portfolio management, fundamental/quantitative/pre-deal research
covering Asian and China markets, multi-asset class investment, and financial advisory. She is a
Board Director of the CFA Society Hong Kong, and the Investor and Financial Education Council’s
Financial Education Coordination Committee Member. Ms Khoo served as the CFA Institute’s
Presidents Council Governance Committee Member from 2019 to 2020, and the President of the
CFA Society Hong Kong from 2016 to 2018.

Bkt
ERTHAEETEREERITEEAT  GIREALAEE WETMNNFETISHER St/
SRR - ZEERRRENTBHATEEEEENER - 2B BFT SO MANCFARE
NEE  URBEENSRYEZESNSRHUERAZTESNE - L ZTH2019F E2020F &
ACFA e RIEZSERZEENKE * WH2016F 22018F I EECFAGZE R -
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From 2018-03-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-09-30

TEE R+ 2018-03-01
FEAER © 2023-09-30

From 2021-10-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-09-30

EEIE R - 2021-10-01
EEE 5 - 2023-09-30

MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS
ZEEREEEKE

Mr Anthony Leung

Mr Leung is the Assurance Leader of Ernst & Young member firms for Hong Kong and Macau. He is
a former member of the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 2009
and completed the six-year term in 2015. He had previously served on the Professional Conduct
Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a member of both the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia.

RONRKE

REEBRELKBARRPIFFRBEEARA  BEBTABERIMBRARLTEREEZRE
(f£2009E2016F E KN FEH) - M EEBEGHMAGEXTREZEELE - RALRR
ARG AEGERLRANTHEIMASEER -

Ms Janet Li

Ms Li, CFA, MAoF, is a Partner and the Wealth Business Leader, Asia at Mercer. She oversees and
is responsible for Mercer’s Wealth (Investment and Retirement) Business in Asia. In her role, she
leads and drives strategic growth to the business as well as its operations and implementations.
She is currently serving as member on the Human Capital Committee of the Financial Services
Development Council (FSDC) and member of the Hang Seng Index Advisory Committee.

YR+

Z 2+ - CFA, MAOF * AEMREBRANY B RIREEFEMNEESHLE  wEEWEERER
DM E (88 RARIK) 375 o e ARz - BB Wi e EMEBSIE RAGT S - LUREKE
EHEM - WIREMETEESRERPANER/NMAKE - URELEHEAMEZESZES -
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS

ZEEREEERE

From 2021-10-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-09-30

R R - 2021-10-01
EE &R - 2023-09-30

From 2019-10-01

Current appointment expires
on 2023-09-30

EEIE R - 2019-10-01
EEE 5 - 2023-09-30

/

Mr William Mak
Mr Mak is currently an assurance partner of PwC Hong Kong. He has over 30 years of experience
in providing assurance and advisory services in Hong Kong and Mainland China with capital market
related activities.

EYREE
BFREAGTHEREBELABKBETMEBMETABA - MEFBE= T FHETERAMIRHEE
SR EBHARENER  T2ACERHEATSEBHERS -

Mr Francis Mok

Mr Mok is currently the Principal Consultant of Francis Mok Consulting, helping clients to establish
the best Human capital practices. He worked with a wide range of corporations and companies,
transforming HR practices and building leadership pipelines for business sustainability. He is a Past
President of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resources Management (HKIHRM), and a Past
President of the Asia Pacific Federation of Human Resource Management (APFHRM).

ERBiSE
REABRAERBERARGERR  EYPEPRUKEANEAER - RELBERSHIARD
X BORBHERANEREREY tEEEANERERZSHERNTAANERERH S

gRER-
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ZEERZEENRE

Mr Keith Pogson

Mr Pogson, Senior Partner of Asia Pacific of Financial Services of EY. He is also a Deputy Chairman
since 2020 of the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and a member
since 2016. He is a former President of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), and continues to be the Chair of the Regulatory Oversight Board and a member of the
Governance Committee and Disciplinary Panel of the HKICPA, and was previously the Chair of the
Audit Committee Chair, the Ethical Standard Setting Committee, the Assurance Standards Setting
Committees and the Professional Conduct Committees of the HKICPA. He is a Panel member of

T the Resolution Compensation Tribunal of Financial Services and the Treasury of the Government of
From 2018-03-01 Hong Kong SAR since 2015. He is a Fellow and Practicing Member of the HKICPA, a Fellow of the
Appointment expires Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Securities and
on 2023-09-30 Investment Institute as well as a Member of Hong Kong Academy of Finance.
FAIER - 2018-03-01
FEBE ) - 2023-09-30 oYkt

BIRERLRKERBRBEARSRERA - thE2020F EEEEFEMERISM ETEERRE
& B2016FREMEKE - B EEFEEHNAEER  RALSEXETEEZESLF MU
REZZEGRCA/PMENKE - TBEASRREZE SR BREMNEZES - HEER
HEZEGREXERTEESIR - thB2015F BRETFEFAIITREBRMT € BARES RERRR
BIEEEHEN/ NMEKE - I ABESMASERTENNESE © (I RIEH MER TS

HEHMARAREE  BEESRREBEERTARTBLRIREH -

Prof Zabihollah Rezaee

Prof Rezaee is the Thompson-Hill Chair of Excellence and Professor of Accountancy at the
University of Memphis and has served a two-year term on the Standing Advisory Group of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB). He holds ten certifications including Certified
Public Accountant (CPA). He is currently the editor of the Journal of Forensic Accounting Research
(JFAR). Professor Rezaee has published over 225 articles and made more than 250 presentations,
written 14 books and served as expert witness. Prof Rezaee’s teaching, research and service
interests are in financial reporting, auditing, corporate governance, business sustainability, forensic
accounting and organizational ethics.

From 2019-12-11

Appointment expires Zabihollah Rezaee#(1%

on 2023-09-30 RezaeeZ{ %2 £ JEAT R Z Thompson-Hillfg H B EEHUIE R &5t 220X - S X EM AR 25T E
RER - 2019-12-11 BEZ B PCAOB)M B8/ MERIEME o tifA +HREEN - BEFMEFAER - thIRE
TAjJE R < 2023-09-30 CEB & 5H 75555 (Journal of Forensic Accounting Research)f#m#E o Rezaee#{i% 3K 7225/

XE - BRT250ZREHERIER T14KE - A BEFEFEREA © RezaeeBEMWHKE - FEMIRT
B EEMBES B £EER  ERAUREN  EBEMAREE -
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ZEEREEERE

From 2020-02-05
Appointment expires

on 2024-02-04

FEIER : 2020-02-05
EEE W - 2024-02-04

From 2018-12-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-09-30

EEE R - 2018-12-01
EEE 5 - 2023-09-30

Mr Paul Smith

Mr Smith is an independent corporate director. He served as President and CEO of CFA Institute
from January 2015 to September 2019. Previously he owned and ran Asia Alternative Asset
Partners, a Hong Kong Hedge Fund Group. He first came to Hong Kong in 1996 to run the Bank
of Bermuda'’s securities servicing business and on sale to HSBC acted as Global Head of HSBC'’s
alternative funds servicing business. From 1984 to 1995 he worked for Ermitage International as
a European fund manager spending the last seven years as CEO. He is a Fellow of the Chartered
Accountants of England and Wales, a Chartered Financial Analyst and holds a Master of Arts degree
from Oxford University.

Paul Smith%t &£

Smithse £ B A B ESE © MR2015F1 AE20190F9 A TR RO IMMB S T FHRTHA
oo LA MR RCEF B R E S EBEAsia Alternative Asset Partners © 719964 & )X 5K 2|
S KEBRRIRTNEFRGER - WHETELET  MEETDELRTSEECREEY
H2ERBE A ° #£1984F F|19954F + fibfEErmitage InternationalEEBUME S 4CIE - IMIEIM R
TERBEETREE - M ERREFEBST SN E TSRO E - WiEEFEAR
KSR 24T -

Mr David Stannard
Mr Stannard is a corporate lawyer based in Hong Kong. He was an Executive Director in charge of
the Corporate Finance Division of the Securities and Futures Commission (1999-2001), a member of
the Listing Committees of the Main Board and the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (2003-2008) and a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law
Reform (2003-2010).

PRERESL

SHERSEERTEREEBNAREE - I1999F E2001 FHAERF I EEHRERZ B X/
AEMITEE  2003FE2008F REEMAEXHMBER AT TRMAIER LHEEGMKE © 2003
FE20105 RRAVERERKLEGKE -
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From 2020-02-05
Appointment expires

on 2024-02-04

FEIER : 2020-02-05
EEE W - 2024-02-04

From 2019-10-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-09-30

EEE R - 2019-10-01
ERAIE + 2023-09-30

MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS
ZEEREEEKE

Mr Eric Tong

Mr Tong is an Audit & Assurance Partner of Deloitte China’s Financial Services Industry Group.
He brings with him over 35 years of experience in auditing and advising international and local
banks and securities companies. He is the Chairman for Deloitte INED Club and was the leader for
Financial Services Industry for Southern China. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He was the HKICPA President in 2018 and has chaired various committees of the
HKICPA including Governance Committee, Audit and Assurance Standards Committee, Securities
Regulatory Advisory Panel and Branding and Communication Advisory Panel. Mr Tong received the
HKSAR Chief Executive’s Commendation for Community Service in July 2018. He was a member of
Policy Research Committee of Financial Services Development Council between 2017 and 2019.

RS

BAEAEYTFRACRRBEBARIZEEABA  WIEBRRAMBTT - FHQ RIEMHEA KA

RIS HEHEBBRISFLR  BEEYEIENTEFTH S IR  TERIPRERR 2SR
IRISEFTEEA - thRFB SRS REARFLRERITFASFHMAGEREE - 20185
HESEEHAEER  UEHETASLEAZES LR BIEEREE S  BitWHRFELE
BE  BHEFETZESRMEREBEER/ M - EAEN2018F7 ABETH R EALE R
ik - 2017 F E22019F AR A RER BRI/ NEKE -

Mr Richard Tsang

Mr Tsang is the founder and Chairman of Strategic Public Relations Group. His major public-service
roles include Deputy Chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors; President of Enterprise
Asia; Member of Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health; Member of the Advisory Council
on Food and Environmental Hygiene; Member of Telecommunications Users and Consumers
Advisory Committee; Office of the Communications Authority; Trustee of Ocean Park Conservation
Foundation Hong Kong; and Council Member of UNICEF Hong Kong, among others.

BYERE

LARARABAABMREREEABRALTIE - EABEEFTEEESEEL/E - Enterprise Asia
wE - BEENERRFZESELE RYNMRRFLEXKAZESELE BAEEEERNAE B
ARBAFPMEEERAREGERE  BEEEF R AEREESEREANMABEREESTEZE S
KB -

A

b
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS

ZEEREEERE

From 2019-10-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-09-30

FRFIER  2019-10-01
ERJE ) : 2023-09-30

From 2021-04-15
Appointment expires

on 2023-04-14

EEIIER : 2021-04-156
AR+ 2023-04-14

Ms Nancy Sau Ling Tse, JP

Ms. Tse is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of Wharf (Holdings) Limited (WHL);
Link Asset Management Limited (Manager of the Link Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT)), DBS
Bank (Hong Kong) Limited as well as HSBC Provident Fund Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited (HPFT).
She is also the Chairperson of the Board of HPFT. She is the former Chief Financial Officer and
Director (Finance and Information Technology Services) of the Hong Kong Hospital Authority.
She is a member of the Board of Governors of the Prince Philip Dental Hospital and is an Adjunct
Professor of the Jockey Club School of Public Health and Primary Care of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. She is the deputy chair of the Professional Accountants in Business Advisory Group
and a member of the Public Policy and Regulation Advisory Group of the International Federation
of Accountants. She is a Fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a Fellow member for the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

WERLZL > KAF#HL
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MK E - T EE RS ATERTENEEEEEGEREE -

Mr Stephen Weatherseed

Mr Stephen Weatherseed is a Senior Director of Mazars and was the Managing Partner from 2012
to 2020. He is also a Council Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an Independent
Board Member of the English Schools Foundation and the Honorary Treasurer for the Ladies’
Recreation Club. He was previously the Deputy Chairman of the Professional Conduct Committee
and a member of the Examinations Board and of the Continuing Professional Education Committee
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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From 2019-04-01
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on 2023-03-31

EAER + 2019-04-01
EE W - 2023-03-31

From 2019-10-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-09-30
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Mr Andy Wong

Mr Wong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 29 years of professional experience in assurance
and business advisory services. Currently, he is the IPO leader of ShineWing (HK) CPA Limited and
a member partner of the firm’s Risk Management Committee and PRC-HK Business Coordination
Partner.
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BERERBAGHMAGMEHAREHMAEEE - (AR RAEL ARG kS #B29
FEEER - ARl REKPN(BFR) SHMEBEMERARNETRBEIEARA - ZITAR
EEZEERBEBARTERBHHASBA -

Mr Stephen Wong

Mr Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined
RSM Hong Kong in 1988 and was made partner in 1991. He is currently the Managing Partner and
the Head of Audit and Assurance Services of RSM Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is also the member of the
Global Quality Committee of RSM Global which oversees the audit quality of all RSM member firms
over the world.
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From 2019-10-01
Appointment expires

on 2023-09-30

EAER : 2019-10-01
EEE W - 2023-09-30

From 2018-03-01
Appointment expires

on 2024-02-29

EEIE R - 2018-03-01
(EHRIE R - 2024-02-29

From 2019-12-11
Appointment expires

on 2023-09-30

EEIIER : 2019-12-11
EA & - 2023-09-30

Mr Jackson Woo

Mr Woo is a solicitor in private practice with 30 years of experience and also has 20 years of
experience in investment banking. He specializes in commercial and corporate matters involving
listed companies, and is currently serving as independent non-executive directors of two companies
listed in Hong Kong.

Mr Woo is a Practising Solicitor Member on the panel of the Solicitors’ Disciplinary Tribunal and a
Panel Member of the Resolution Compensation Tribunal under the Financial Institutions (Resolution)
Ordinance (Cap. 628) of Hong Kong. In addition, he is a member of the Takeovers and Mergers
Panel and the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong, and is also a member of the Listing Review Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

MRERE
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A R BB R AERE 2 NEEMKE MRB(EREE GRERS) 5GP (F6288) RER
REMERHE ZEENKE - W R RBAEFRNESHERZ 8V WBRAHERES
RBBEEREZEGZERE WIRBAMARIMARARZ LMEZZEGZER -

Mr Elton Yeung

Mr. Yeung is the Vice Chairman of PricewaterhouseCoopers China. He has extensive audit
and business advisory experiences, and has led numerous complex restructuring and listing
engagements, including initial public offerings of PRC state-owned and private-owned enterprises
seeking listing in the US, HK and Mainland China markets. He has in-depth understanding of
relevant regulatory environment and financial reporting requirements for listed companies.
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Prof Wayne Yu
Prof Yu is a professor at the City University of Hong Kong. His teaching and research areas include
corporate governance, corporate finance, and capital markets. In addition, he has been serving as
a non-executive and independent director for a number of listed companies. He is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst.
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ZEERZEEKE
Financial Reporting Review Panel MR ERNNEEE
Panel Convenors ZEEEEA
Mr lan Farrar FRELE
Mr Mark Johnson HEFEE
Dr PM Kam, BBS HEXEL - AEFAEE
Mr Carmelo Lee, JP TatidE  KFat
Mr Paul Shieh, SC KA - ARAZAD
Mr Tang Kwai Chang BEZEE
Ms Priscilla Wong, BBS, JP gLt - HEFEE - KFat
Mr Wong Kim Man e e
Mrs Betty Yuen, JP Brér e+ - RFEH+
Members KB
Mr Abraham Chan, SC' BRELF R - BIRAEAD
Mr Edmund Chan'’ BRIE A
Prof Cheng Cheng Shing SR SR
Mr Hamilton Cheng ERIRER S
Ms Caroline Chiu? HEREZT?
Ms Bella Chhoa? BRI L2
Ms Yvonne Cheng, SC' EE L - BFEAEA
Mr Jeckle Chiu' BIHRE &
Mr Louis Chow Sy e
Ms Irene Chu? RAEEL L2
Mr Benny Chung? $E T B 5 A2
Ms Candy Fong FEERZ T
Mr Tommy Fung' IBEN A
Prof Gu Zhaoyang BFAIS
Ms Joan Ho' CES-Y-eu
Prof Hung Ming Vi HEREHIX
Mr Carlyon Knight-Evans REHLE
Mr Byron Khoo e A
Ms Bernardine Lam? BB 2L 12
Ms Kelly Kong' BT a2z £
Mr Kenneth Lau LIRS A
Mr Leo Lee ERREAE
Mr Ernest Lee PEREE
Mr Gilbert Lee? PR A?
Ms Alva Lee? BhIo 12
Mr Lee Yin-toa FE#AE
Mr Benjamin Lo? BB
Mr Lo Nim-chi2 F i
Mr William Lo BEIRSEE
Ms Fanny Lung BEMEER T
Mr Bernard Mak ' IR
Prof Mo Lai Lan RREERZIE
Mr Christopher Morley BB E
Mr Kenneth Morrison MAE(ERAE
Ms Agnes Nardi' FREL L
Prof. James Arvid Ohlson James Arvid Ohlson##5
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Mr Simon Ng?

Mr Simon John Riley
Mr Patrick Antonio Rozario
Ms Shelley So

Mr Gary Stevenson

Mr Eric Tang

Mr Hamilton Tang

Mr Jim Tang

Mr Tsui Hon Man'
Prof. Wang Xin

Ms Wendy Yuen'

Prof Zhang Guochang'

T Term expired on 15 July 2021
2 Appointed on 16 July 2021

Process Review Panel

Chairperson
Ms Edith Shih

Members

Mr Patrick Law Fu-yuen

Mr Andrew Mak Yip-shing

Mr Frederick Tsang Sui-cheong

Mr Tse Kam Keung

Professor Anna Wong Wai-kwan

Mr Yu Chung-leung

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (ex-officio)

Ms Denise Lam (representative of the Secretary for Justice) (ex-officio)

Audit Investigation Board

Chairman
Mr Marek Grabowski (ex-officio)

Members

Mr TS Chan

Mr Andes Kwok
Ms Wincey Lam
Ms Anna Lau
Ms Joyce Woo
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The Independent Listed Entity Auditor Regulator
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24th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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